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Narmrative Report
Infroduction

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2018 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in the
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31 March 2018 {the Code} and
the Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 05/2018. It is the purpose of
this foreword to explain, in an easily understandabie way, the financial facts in relation to the
Council,

This Statement of Accounts explains Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council's
finances during the financial year 2017/18 and its financial position at the end of that year. It
follows approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts,

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to make the financial statements understandable to as
wide an audience as possible. It is not intended to comment on Council policies and it is not
part of the financial statements but is however prepared on the basis that it is consistent with the
financial statements.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of
group financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures. Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council does not have material
interests in such bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 31, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount
to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations; this is different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 32, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. Details of the cost of the Councils
services are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Summary (CIES). These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for
Local Tax purposes. The ‘Net increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves line
shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from
earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council.



The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 33, shows the vaiue as at the Balance Sheet date of the
Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council [{assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in iwo categories. The first category of
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services,
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their
use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the Council is not
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised
gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement, as set out on page 34, shows the changes in cash ond cash
equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation
and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended
to contiibute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash fiows arising from financing activities
are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrowing) to the
Council.

Financial Report

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Council increased its General Fund by £3.3m to £20.4m.
The Council's net budget of £66.3m was supplemented by additional rates income of £1.4m.
The total Net Operating Expenditure reported in the CIES is £85.5m (this includes amounts for
depreciation, impairments and other adjustments to comply with accounting standards).

Expenditure on capital projects during the year amounted to £8.5m. This included expenditure
on a number of projects and initiatives including commencement of works at South Lake Leisure
Centre (£0.9m}, Tennis Courts & Pavilion at Banbridge Leisure Centre(£0.3m), Gosford Forest Park
{£0.5m), Darkley Forest (£0.2m}, Kernan Cemtery {£1m). Former Denny's site (£0.5m). Banbridge
Civic Building {£0.3m} and Refuse Vehicles (£0.8m).



{a)

(o)

(c)

(d)

The Council's financial accounts for the year ended 31st March 2018 are set out on pages
30 to 100 and consist of:

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
The Movement in Reserves Statement

The Balance Sheet

The Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the accounts,

During 2017/18 the Councit incurred gross expenditure on Continuing Operations in the
amount of £100m {2016/17 £83.3m). This was supplemented by income from various
sources including grants and service users of £20m (2016/17 £18.8m) resulting in Net
Expenditure of £80m (2016/17 £64.5m). Service expenditure and income is summarised in
the table below:

Services Gross . Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£000 £000 £'000

Place Directorate 15,869 4,540 11,329
People Directorate 60,551 11.760 48,791
Position Directorate 13,549 3,343 10,226
Performance Directorate 10,183 287 9.894

Other Services

Continuing Operations 100,172 19,930 80,242

Material assets acquired during the year were £800k for the purchase of lands and £800k
for vehicles. As a result of an assessment caried out., council has increased the
liability/provision for landfill costs by £400k.

The Council's net pension liability is in the region of £55.7m. This is an increase of more than
£5.8m and relates mainly to changes in financial assumptions. The net pension liability is
the total estimated liability of the Council to its current workforce and retired members of
the scheme. There is no requirement for the Council o make a one-off payment to fund
this liability and there are therefore no immediate pressures which the Council has to fund
from Reserves or make any material changes to the rates. Details regarding pensions are
included in Note 21,

Part of the Local Government Reform Process included the transfer of functions, services
and staff from Central to Local Government. The outworkings of the transfer were thot
staff retained their pension entitlements and on-going access to the Civil Service Pension
Scheme (this is an unfunded scheme)}. The Council, being the employer of the transferred
staff, was obligated to contribute towards the employees pensions. However. this is
processed in the form of in-year payments and there is therefore no pension provision.
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A review of Council assets resulted in the downward revaluation and derecognition of
some assets to the value of £7m. These adjustments are reflected in Note 11 in the
accounts and are included within the Revaluation Increases/{decreases) to the CIES and
Derecognition - Other headings. None of the adjustments had an impact on Council
reserves.

There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

There were no major changes in the Council's statutory functions during the year.

During the 2017/18 financial year the Council contfinued to fund the delivery of services
and capital investment by means of income from the district rates and grants from
Central Government together with reliance on existing loans and borrowings amounting
to just over £40m. All historical loans were secured by Government borrowings and LOBOs
{Lender Option Borrower Opfion). No new loans or borrowings were required by the
Council in 2017/18.

There were no significant contingencies during the financial year. There was a decrease in
the provision for bad debt of £14k in 2017/18 to due to in year utilisation of the provision, As
aresult of an assessment carried out, councit has increased the liability/provision for landfil
costs by £400k.

There are no material post balance sheet events to be reported upon at the date of
approval of these financial statements.

There are a number of economic factors that can impact on local councils as outlined in
the Performance Report.

A review of the presentation of local authority financial statements resulted in changes to
the Code of Accounting Practice. Councils are required to report on the basis of how they
are structured and how they operate, monitor and manage financial performance. The
purpose of the Expenditure and Funding Andlysis (EFA) is to bring together the funding
framework and the accounting framework by service. The EFA takes net expenditure
chargeable to taxation, reconciling this to the CIES surplus or deficit on the Provision of
Services. There is no impact on the balance sheet as a result of this change in accounting
policy and as such a third balance sheet is not required.



Performance Report

Performance Improvement Planning is an annual process which forms part of the Council's
Corporate Management System, directly linked to the overarching planning framewaork. Part
12 of the Local Government Act (NI} 2014 sets out a general Duty of Improvement for Councils
“in that" a local Council must make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
exercise of its function. Performance management refers to the processes and behaviours
which apply to everyone within the Council to maintain high standards to enable local people
to access high quality, cost effective services and to ensure that we deliver on our strategic
vision. Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is committed to establishing
processes to ensure that it effectively manages performance and is focused on delivering
centfinuous improvement.

The Corporate Improvement Plan for 2018-19 confirms the vison, ambitions and objectives for
the Council. As an organisation the Council is committed to delivering three ambitious priorities
from the interim corporate plan: Prosper the Place; Serve the People; Strengthen our Posilion
and continue to be ambitious in the pursuit of their realisation. Access to the Council's 2018-19
Corporate Improvement Plan can be obtained through the following link:
hﬂgs:{_a'_www.;:::rmouhbunbridqecrciqavun.go_v.uk,«'downIQad,n_’prerfc_armonce-plon 2015-
16/21894/performance-improvement-plan-for-2018-2019.pdf

The Council recognises ‘improvement’ to mean activity that enhances the sustainable quality
of life and environment for ratepayers and communities. The aim of this Performance
Improvement Plan {2018-19) is to set out what we will do in the year ahead to secure our new
statutory general duty of continuous improvement in the exercise of our functions {including
reference fo any statutory performance indicators and standards), and to bring about
improvement against at least one of the following specified aspects:

o) Strategic effectiveness
b) Service quality
c) Service availability

d) Fairness
e) Sustainability
f) Efficiency

g) Innovation

Each of the four performance improvement objectives for 2018/19 were developed to align
with ‘Connected’ {the Borough's Community Pian) and the Council's corporate priorities. The
performance improvement objectives include the statutory performance indicators and
standards for Economic Development, Planning and Waste Management.

The Performance Improvement Objectives identified for 2018/19 are:
» Provide and promote more opportunities for people to improve their physical, mental
and social wellbeing through increased participation
Increase economic growth across the Borough
o Strategic Effectiveness, Service Availability, Fairness, Efficiency, Sustainability,
Innovation
* Increase customer satisfaction and accessibility to Council Services

The Council's Performance Self-Assessment Report for 2017/18 will be published on the
Council website www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk by 30t September 2018,



Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers haw the
funding available to the authority (i.e. government grants, domestic and business rates) for the
year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The EFA
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
Council's directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted
accounting practices is presented more fully in the CIES and detailed analysis is shown in Notes
2(a) and (b).

Organisational overview and external environment

The Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets out the ambitious aims for the Borough over the
next five years. It outlines the ongoing commitments to provide high quality, efficient and
effective public services, facilities, projects and programmes. The intention is to create “a
healthy, happy and connected community, a vibrant and sustainable economy and
appealing places for living, working and learning."

The Corporate Plan is the roadmap for delivering the Community Plan, the overarching
strategy for the Borough, which was developed by all the relevant statutory partners in
consultation with local people and communities. It also sets out the strategic direction on a
broader scale, outlining plans to promote the Borough on a local, regional, national and
global stage to attract investment to the area.

This is the second corporate plan since the formation of the councilin 2015 and there has been
significant progress since then. In the last three years the Council has developed and
implemented a number of key strategies including Regeneration and Development Strategy
{2015-2020), ‘Connected’ Community Plan (2017-2030), and ‘Transform' Tourism Strategy
{2017-2022) to improve the lives of everyone in the area.

The Council has also recently launched its Preferred Options Paper for the new Local
Development Plan (LDP). Once finalised, the LDP will allow the Borough's economy o develop
further and meet the demands of a growing popuiation. These successes allow the
organisation to move forward confidently, knowing that it can deliver again with a new, even
more ambitious Corporate Plan for 2018-2023.

Councils now have more responsibility than has been seen in a generation. The increased
powers granted in 2015 alfow for decisions that affect not only the Borough, but the region s
a whole. Councils are tasked with making strategically important decisions that will affect
future generations, and it is in this context that it encourages everyone to engage with their
efected members so help co-create a Borough in which everyone is proud to live, work, visit,
learn and invest.

Through careful management the Council can look forward to impilementing a significont
investment programme across a variety of targeted projects over the next four years.

Key developments include a brand new purpose-built Leisure Centre in Craigavon (£37m),
upgrading play parks {£4.75m) and extending Kernan Cemetery (£1.2m), among others, It is
also delivering support for rural areas {£8m) and carrying out a number of environmental
improvement schemes in towns and villages throughout the Borough. This is in addition to
securing UK government funding for improved digital connectivity to enable greater business
growth (£2.4m), EU funding to support peace and reconciliation and promote social and
economic stability (£4.9m), and Heritage Lottery Funding to enhance and regenerate
Armagh's historic city centre (£6.3m}.



The Council provides approximately £1m grant funding every year in financial assistance to
various community groups. it is also engaging with private industry in key sectors to help them
grow, expand and address current and future challenges and actively promote the Council
area as open for business. Significant focus is being given to town centres in particular, with
the establishment of new town centre taskforces across the Borough with a focus on
addressing the issues that are impacting on the future development of town centres. Ongoing
engagement is taking place with government departments, public and private sectors,
business organisations, and chamber groups to ensure there is a co-ordinated approach to
our town centre agenda.

The Councilis acutely aware of the external environment - in particular, uncertainty over the
potentialimpact of Brexit and the current status of the Northern Ireland Executive — so Members
and officers have been working even harder to deliverimproved services and projects for focal
communities,

Having successfully tackled major changes over the last few years with the creation of the new
Councilin April 2015, the Council is ready to tackle the next pefiod of important change locally,
regionally and nationally. The Council's Corporate Pian reflects the organisation’s
commitment to the long term outcomes identified in the Community Planning process, as well
as the work that will be undertaken to ensure the continued efforts to provide high quality
services forlocai ratepayers. The Community Planning process has shaped the new Corporate
Plan and its vision has been adopted by the Council as its corporate vision..." a happy. healthy
and connected community, a vibrant and sustainable economy and appeadling places for
living, working and learming."” }

The Council's new Corporate Plan 2018-2023 idenfifies 30 commitments to contribute to this
vision. These are detailed within the Corporate Plan, a copy of which can be found at the
following link:

hitps://www.armaghbanbridgecigigavon.gov.uk/wp-admin/admin
ajax.php?juwpfisadmin=false & action=wpid&task=file.download &wpfd category id=458wpf
d file_id=21802&token=17f90ce32e03704f17c5278e0al 8078a&preview=]

Governance

The Council prepares a separate Annual Governance Statement and this accompanies the
financial statements. Whilst the Annual Governance Statement can be reviewed in detail it is
important to reiterate that the effectiveness of the Council's intemal controls is examined in
detail through the work of internal Audit. An annual plan is approved by Council and this plan
is based on a needs and risk assessment process that focuses resources on higher risk areas
and meets the professional standards required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
Based on evidence from planned audits and any special investigations, Interal Audit reports
to the Performance & Audit Committee on any major weaknesses that have been identified
in the intemal controls examined and highlights where important improvements are
considered necessary.

During the year, 21 audits were completed resulting in a completion rate of 72%. Of these 21,
3 were given limited assurance and details are included in the Annuat Governance Statement.

Operational model

The Council's 2017-18 overall budget funding of £66.3m was raised by way of Rates income of
£62.4 million along with Central Government grants of £3.9m. Council operates under four
separate Directorates all ultimately responsible to the Members of Council and the local
ratepayer, namely: Place; People; Position; Performance.



Whilst some areas were able to generate income from frontline services {e.g. Leisure Centres)
the net budgeted cost to Council in each of the areas is Place £6.5m; People £34.4m, Position
£5.5m, Performance £8.8m os well as a further £11.1m to fund the various capital projects
across Council.

The authority's key operational activities reported within each Directorate were as follows:

¢ Place includes Economic Development, Regeneration, Tourism, Arts & Culture:

* People includes Environmental Services, Environmental Health, Health & Recreation,
and Community Development;

» Position includes Planning, Building Control, Estates & Assets Management and
Community Planning;

» Performance includes ICT, Human Resources, Finance, and Governance &
Democratic Services:

Risks and opportunities

The Council's Corporate Plan looks to the future and reflects how we as an organisation
commit to the long term outcomes identified in the Community Planning process, as well as
the work required to ensure we continue to provide high quality services.

It is the vision of the Council that it will create "a healthy, happy and connected community,
a vibrant and sustainable economy and appealing piaces for living, working and learning."”

As a Council the top key programmes to deliver upon include: investment & Growth Agenda
including Town Centre Development, Clean Neighbourhoods, Improve everyone's Health &
Well-being and Customer Care,

The Council's Community Plan identifies nine key long term outcome indicators which are
interwoven within the strategic goals and objectives of the Corporate Pian and internal
business plans. These long-term outcomes can be summarised as follows:

Confident Community
Healthy Community
Welcoming Community
Enterprising Economy
Skilled Economy
Tourism Economy
Creative Place
Enhanced Place
Revitalised Place

The Community Plan looks to the future and symbolises the opportunities that Members and
officers believe exist for the delivery of both long term and short term goals. The Community
Plan can be accessed by following the link below:
https://www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk/downioad/ 121/community-

planning/ 1 705%9/connected-community-plan-2.pdf

The Council is aiso looking to the future through developing a new Local Development Plan.
This new plan will set out the Council’s vision for future growth and development of the
borough up until 2030.

Local residents and all key stakeholders were invited 1o have their say during a consultation
exercise which ended on 30t May 2018. Within the consultation there was a Preferred Options
Paper which highlighted the approach that the Council proposes to take on a range of
planning issues, from housing in urban and rural tocations, land use, economic development,



creating greater investment, jobs and improved qudlity of life for everyone fo protection of
the environment.

Risk is an area which the Council is focussed on, and a number of risks have been identified at
a corporate, directorate and department level. These are reported upon on o regular basis
through the Performance & Audit Commiitee. The management of risk infernally within the
organisation and any significant issues arising during the year and/or areas of concern are
referenced in the Annual Governance Statement.

Strateqgy and resource allocation

The Council is currently working to agree a three year investment programme. When formally
agreed this will confirm a minimum level of planned investment in the medium term. The
Council will also be enhancing govermnance arangements moving forward regarding controtls,
criteria and the assessment of future proposed capital expenditure and it is expected this work
will be taken forward in the period leading up to the commencement of the annual estimates
process. In fandem with the enhanced govemance arrangements the Council will also be
finalising its medium term financial strategy now that the capital plan has been agreed and
approved.

In terms of the allocation of resources, the infographics below confirm not only the distribution
of resources but also information regarding both the Regional and the District rates as well as
the sources and level of income.



Rates 2018-19

in Northern freland, rates are a property tax basad on the capital, market or rental value of proparties,

Contraland

Planning

Lalsure,

o 1kg Bnd
Education C‘,\? %\ﬂ 0:; :F: ten
M
ﬁ e e A
— Ly

m caliections

soc & YOUR TOTAL
poice RATES BILL m

Cammunity
wervicas

Awarage
houssholders mnfcastructura

will 200 an
Increasa of
E£1.0B/month

o A Digtrict rate

set byl i SRR el et By your

. tocal coumail

towardy: : 1 goas towarde

@ Ratea
T2%

@ Revenue
from eervices
20%

Where our money
comes from and
where it goes

@ Central gover nment
and grants 8%

» Capital funding

for projects
such berthe
newisiure
centra faotity) in
Dugmnumd
repldng bin
lavtes

© 0uony on owr rates? Call Land and Praperty Services Rete Callectionon D300 200 7801 o visit nidrect govuk/rates

The Council's medium and longer terms goals and ambitions are also referenced in the
Corporate Plan {a link to which is included earlier in this report). These goals and targets will be
taken into consideration in the development of the Medium Term Financial plan.
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Outlock

There continues to be a number of economic factors that can impact on local councils,
including inflation, interest rates, pay setflements and general uncertainty within financial
markets. The current economic climate continues to provide challenges for focal businesses
within the Borough and that in furn has a direct impact on council income. The wider public
sector is also facing funding challenges and this in tum could have direct repercussions for the
Council as it receives grant funding on an annual basis from central government. Maintaining
and delivering effective and efficient front line services to customers whilst investing for the
future is an on-going test for Members and officers and careful assessment of ptanned
expenditure in the context of affordability is a critical process in the effective management of
resources. However, despite these challenges, the cumrent situation is reasonably stable and
that affords the opportunity for robust projections of need and funding. The Council therefore
confinues to provide value for money to local ratepayers whilst developing strategies and
plans for further enhancement to the Borough which are affordable and effective.

The Council has a number of strategic documents referred to earlier (e.g. Corporate Plan,
Community Plan and the Performance Improvement Plan) which highlight the proposed level
of investment by the Council and delivering for local homeowners and businesses alike across
the borough through both community and economic development.

The proposed investment and enhanced service delivery will be funded from a number of
measures including efficiencies, transformation, effective treasury management and financial
management. Current plans and strategies of the Councit for the future are deemed to be
affordable and no shortfalls have been identified.

The annual accounts detail the Council's activities during the year, capital expenditure,
changes to fixed assets, long term liabilities, cash flows and reserves. Capital expenditure of
£8.5m incurred within 2017/18 includes commencement of works at South Lake Leisure Centre
(£0.9m), Tennis Courts & Pavilion at Banbridge Leisure Centre(£0.3m). Gosford Forest Park
(£0.5m), Darkley Forest (£0.2m), Keman Cemetery (£1m), Former Denny's site {£0.5m]}.
Banbridge Civic Building (£0.3m) and Refuse Vehicles (£0.8m).

Basis of preparation

The Councit's annual accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended to present
to readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2017-18 financial year. There are
strict controls governing the accounting standards that must be complied with, accounting
policies must be applied on a consistent basis and officers must follow relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements. There are also materiality thresholds to be adhered to and officers
are obliged to make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have
endeavoured to ensure that as much information as possibie has been presented to make the
accounts as user friendly as possible within these limitations.

11



Statement of the Council's and Chiet Financial Ofticer's Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall designate an officer of
the council as its chief financial officer and these arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision
of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 the
Couricil, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Performance & Audit Committee and by the Chief Finance Officer
September 2018.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit] Regulations [Northern Ireland] 2015,
the Chief Financiai Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in the
form directed by the Depariment for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as al the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

° observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

. follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies
on a consistent basis, and

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Financial Officer is also required 1o:
. keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

. take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities,

12



Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

Scope of Responsibility

Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded
and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Council also has a duty under Local Government (Best Value) Act (Northern Ireland) 2002 to
make arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its function, which
includes arrangements for the management of risk. :

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the principles
of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This statement
explains how the Councit meets the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local Government
(Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Irefand) 2015 in relation to the publication of an Annuat
Governance Statement.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systerns and processes, and culture and values by which
the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with
and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system
of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be rediised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements.

The Governance Framework

The structure detailed below is designed to reflect the Council’s Vision and Strategic Pricrities as set
out in the Corporate Plan. A key element of the structure is to ensure a 'One Council’ approach by
enabling cross Directorate working.

PERFORMANCE

Governaonce Performance
Policy & - & Audit
Resources




Through the work of the Committees, Members oversee the work of the Council with all Committee
decisions rafified by Full Council except where Committees have been granted delegated authority
to make decisions. In addition to Committees, there are also Working Groups in respect of Estimates
and Financial Assistance and there is also a Members' Advisory Group that oversees the Council's
Investment agenda. There are also 7 corporate priority project boards detailed below:

Organisation Structure/Development

Capital Pian

Leisure Developments - Craigavon & Armagh Leisure Schemes

Investment and Growth Agenda (including Town Centres and events}

Clean Neighbourhoods

Governance (incorporating Member Development & support)

Customer Care

VVVVVVY

An Assurance Framework which illustrates how different sources of assurance and related key
elements/control measures combine to enable the Council to monifor its governance arrangements
and produce the information which enables Council to prepare the Annual Governance Statement
was approved in March 2018.

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out in the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 2016 Edition. How we meet these seven core principles is reviewed and
updated annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance framework are detailed
below:

Behaving with Integrity

Shared values communicated via the Community Pian, Corporate Plan, Perfformance
Improvement Plans and key sirategies

Council Constitution, Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation

Mandatory Code of Conduct for Counciliors and Staff

Gifts & Hospitality policy

Registers of Conflicts of Interest and Members' pecuniary interests maintained

Fraud and Whistleblowing policies and Fraud Investigation Team

Customer Care Strategy and Action Plan

Ethical requirements of professional bodies and expert professiona! advice
Partnership arrangements

Y

VVVVVVVYY

Ensuring Openness

Ongoing consultation and engagement with staff and trade unions
Community Planning Strategic Partnership

Community Engagement Strategy

Community Support Plars 2017/18

Local Development Plan - Preferred Options Paper

Integration Strategy 2017 - 2020

Good Relations Action Plan

Media and members of the public in attendance at Council/Committee meetings
Councit minutes and Annual Financial Report published on web site
Corporate Communications

Equality Scheme and Action Plan

Rurat Development Programme

VVVVYVVYYYVYVYY

Defining Outcomes

» Connected: A Community Plan 2017-2030
» 2018-2023 Corporate Plan
» Local Development Plan - Preferred Options Paper
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Annual Performance Improvement Plan

Strategic masterplanning

Integration Strategy

Departmental and Unit Business Plans

Development of an Organisational Development Strategy

Council's Investment Framework and development of a Capital Plan

VY VVYY

Optimising the achievement of outcomes

» Corporate, Departmental and Performance improvement plans aligned to delivery of the
Connected; Community Plan 2017-2030

Local Development Plan ~ Preferred Options Paper

Community Planning Strategic Parinership

Consultation and engagement processes

Performance Management framework under development

Reporting on the progress of departmental business plans and the Performance improvement
Plan to relevant Committees

Strategic Financial Management Framework

Treasury Management Strategy

Members' Advisory Group to oversee the Council's Investment agenda

Strategic masterplanning

Council Investment Programme

VVVVY

YV VYV VYVY

Developing Capacity & Capability

Ongoing development of an Organisational Development Strategy
Corporate Priority Project Boards

Framework for External Consultancy

Training for Members

induction training

Recruitment and selection procedures

Information Management Transformation Programme

Hected Member Development Plan

Fraud Awareness Training

Corporate Learning & Development Strategy

VY YVY¥YVYYVYY

Finance, Perfformance and Risk Management

Risk Management Policy

New Corporate Risk Management system and processes and procedures in place

Risk Management training

Corporate Risk Register updated and reported quarterly to the Performance & Audit Committee
Internal Audit Service and Audit Management Software system which tracks all outstanding
recommendations

Performance and Audit Committee with externally appointed Lay Representatives (2)

GDPR Project Initiation Document

Information Management Transformation Programme

Finoncial Regulations

Fraud and Whistlebiowing Policies

Fraud Investigation Team

Treasury Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Prudential indicators

YV VVVYYyY

VVVVVYY
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Transparency, Reporting & Effective Accountability

» Corporate website

> Publication of key reports including Annual Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and
Performance Improvement Report

Committee support framework

Internal Audit effectiveness annually reviewed against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
Monitoring of all Internal and External Audit recommendations and six monthly updates to the
Performance & Audit Committee.

vV VvV

The Local Government Act (NI} 2014 legislated the Council's General Power of Competence
enabling a Council to take any action it considered appropriate provided the action was not
prohibited by any other legislation. The Council has been provided with the ability to act in their own
interests and to develop innovative approaches to addressing issues in the borough. Any issues that
may require the Council fo ensure the general power of competence wil be processed through the
Council commitiee structure. The nominated Committee is the Govermnance, Policy and Resources
Commiittee. There was no expenditure under the General Power of Competence during 2017/18.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting. at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is
informed by an annual review of governance, the work of the executive managers within the Council
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the
Head of Performance and Audit's annual report, and also by comments made by the external
auditors,

The Performance and Audit Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of
the Council's risk management framework and associated control environment. it also provides an
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance by highlighting areas
that may expose it to risk and weaken the control environment.

1. The Authority

The Council's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations provide the framework for its decision
making processes and sets out the detailed procedures and codes of conduct by which members
and officers operale to achieve Council objectives. Members meet regularly on a formal basis to set
the strategic direction and monitor the service delivery of the Council. The following Committee
Structure is in place:

Governance, Policy and Resources Committee
Performance and Audit Commitiee

Planning and Regulatory Services Committee

Strategic and Community Planning Committee
Economic Development and Regeneration Commitiee
Environmental Services Committee

Leisure and Community Services Committee

VVVVVVYVY

The Group Party Leaders Forum seeks to provide an informal sounding board on major straftegic issues
in advance of submission to Committee/Council, thereby facilitating and streamlining the conduct
of Council business. This group meets on a monthly basis.

2. The Executive

Strategic Directors and Heads of Department completed six monthly Assurance Statements and in
signing, opinions were informed by the following:
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Assurance from relevant Heads of Department

Corporate and Departmental Risk Registers

Operational policies and procedures

Internal Audit reports

Administrative procedures (including segregation of duties)
Management Supervision

System of delegation and accountability

YVVVVVY

3. Performance & Audit Commiftee

The Council’s Performance & Audit Committee reports to full Council and oversees the work of
internal Audit which operates to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The terms of reference
{Audit Committee Charter) which sets out the purpose and roles and responsibilities was revised in
September 2014.

There are seven Members on the Committee and during 2017/18 meetings were held in May,
September, November 2017 and March 2018. The Northern Irefand Audit Office was in attendance
at all the meetings during the year. In line with best practice two external Lay Representatives were
appointed to the Committee.

The Performance ond Audit Committee Annual Report 2017/18 was presented at the June 2018
meeting. The annuat report included the annual audit committee self-assessment and this was
completed in time to support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement.

4. Internal Audit

The aim of Internal Audit is to provide an independent assurance and advisory service which will help
the Councit achieve its objectives and improve the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes. In preparing the overall audit opinion, Internal Audit reviewed all audit and
fisk activity caried out during the year and the following extract is taken from the 2017/18 Internal
Audit Annual Report:

‘The overall opinion is that there is a SATISFACTORY level of internal control within the Council's
systems and procedures. This opinion is based upon the work of Internal Audit during the 2017718
financial year. Internal Audit is not able o give an opinion on areas that have not been covered by
the service'.

in all areas. Internal Audit recommendations were agreed with senior management, with
improvement plans developed and priority actions required to be implemented within defined
timescales.

The effectiveness of the Council's internal controls is examined in detail through the work of Internai
Audit. The audit plan is based on a needs and risk assessment process that focuses resources on
higher risk areas and meets the professional standards required by the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards. Based on evidence from planned audits and any special investigations, Internal Audit
reports fo the Performance & Audit Committee on any major weaknesses that have been identified
in the internal controls examined and highlights where important improvements are considered
necessary.

Internal Audit continue to facilitate the development of risk management throughout the Council
but this work will be transferring to the Performance section.

A self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards was completed in May 2018 with
the conclusion that Internal Audit was substantially compliant and therefore operating effectively.
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During the year, 24 audits were completed resulting in a completion rate of 80%. Of these 24, four
were given limited assurance. A post audit review has been compieted in one of the four limited
audits in relation to a Health and Recreation facility and Internal Audit consider a satisfactory
assurance now applies. The details of the three remaining limited audits are as follows:

Fleet Management

Monitoring systems in place at the time of audit did not provide adequate assurance that Council
drivers were adhering to EU driving and Working Time Directive (WTD) regulations. There was an
inconsistent approach to the use of driver's cards and digital tachographs across the Council fleet
and as aresult detailed reports from the Fleet Transport Association (FTA} website were only available
for some drivers and vehicles. it was aiso noted that Vehicle Defect Books were not used consistently
across Council. As a result of these issues Council could not assess or monitor compliance to alt O-
Licence regulations. There were no formal processes in place for the reporting of fleet maintenance
costs and discrepancies were found between the various sets of records of the Council's fleet. A
follow up audit of Fleet Management will be completed during 2018-19.

Environmental Services Facility - Post Audit Review

This Post Audit Review was carried out in May 2017. Due to the lack of progress at that time in
implementing recommendations Internal Audit considered the level of assurance to remain as
limited. The outstanding recommendations continue to be monitored via internal Audit's
recommendation tracking process which highlights that 15 of 19 recommendations have now been
implemented. Internal Audit will verify this via an audit of stores.and fuel procedures across Councit
in 2018-19. The remaining fourissues concern the existence of stores procedures, setting of maximum
and minimum stock levels and tendering for the supply of stores items.

IT Governance and Data Securlty

This review identified a lack of operational and strategic IT governance documents. In particular, it
was noted that there was no documented IT Disaster Recovery Plan and no formal Business Continuity
Plan for the [T Department. This may impact on the Council’s ability to operate business as usual in
the event of a significant incident. A number of control weaknesses were also identified in the area
of Network Management and Network Security.

In ali cases recommendations have been agreed with Senior Management, improvement plans
have been developed and priority actions are required to be implemented within defined
timescales.

5. Other explicit review/assurance mechanisms

A Member Officer Working Group was established as part of the overall review of Council
Governance systems and frameworks. The work on governance systems is a key part of the strategic
development of Council and is linked to the roll out of the Community, Corporate and Departmentai
plans ond the implementation of the Member Leadership Programme. The working group
considered revised Standing Orders, an Officers Scheme of Delegation and a discussion paper on
Area Committees. The Constitution was also updated and a Code of Governance and Assurance
Framework were developed and approved. The Code of Governance wil be reviewed and
updated annually.

A review of Civil Contingencies arrangements for Local Government in Northern Ireland resulted in
approval given to new regional delivery arrangements for civit contingencies preparedness and
response for local government,

The Northern Irelond Audit Office provides a level of assurance through the provision of their annual
audit and issuing of a management letter which includes Council responses to address issues
identified.
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External funding received throughout the year is subject to independent audits from the relevant
funders i.e. Europe, Government Departments, SEUPB etc.

Role of Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Executive is the Council's designated Chief Financial Officer {CFO} under the Local
Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. He has authority over all other officers for the
efficient management and execution of the Council’s functions.

In fulfiling this role. the Chief Executive is supported by a number of fully qualified and experienced
staff within the Performance Directorate who are members of various bodies within the Consultative
Committee of Accountancy Bodies [CCAB) and as such ensure the decisions made by the CFO are
based on sound technical knowledge and understanding.

The Council’s financial arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government {2010) as set out in the
Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework.

Update on Significant Governance Issues that were declared at the year ended 2017

Six issues were declared last year with four of these continuing to be declared as issues in this year's
statement (Local Government Reform, Local Development Plan, Interreg INA Programme and ACDC
legal case]. The two issues addressed during 2017-18 are detailed below.

1. Waste Management

In order to mitigate the risks, the Council has produced a Municipal Waste Management Strategy
2016-19 which sets out a framework for the management of municipal waste for the next two years.
The strategy includes an action plan to focus on waste prevention, recycling, composting and the
management of waste to divert from landfill. Council is currently on target to meet actions outlined
in the action plan and meet the 50% recycling composting rate by 2020. In 2016/17 the recycling
rate was 48.8% and has increased further to 50.84% for 2017-18 {rate to be verified by the Department
for Environment, Agriculture and Rural Affairs {DEARA)).

2. Headalth and Recreation Fraud

Internal Audit carried out a preliminary investigation in November 2016, with update reports being
presented to the Performance & Audit Committee during 2017-18. As a result of an internal
investigation and action taken in respect of the failings identified, this has been dealt with in
accordance with the appropriate disciplinary procedures.

Significant Governance Issues for the year ended 2018

1. General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

The European General Data Protection Regulation {GDPR) came into force across the European
Union on 25 May 2018 with the aim of standardising and strengthening the right of European citizens
to data privacy by emphasising transparency, security and accountability by data controllers. GDPR
expands the ciassification of ‘personal data' to data from which a living individual can be identified.
The obvious examples of these are a name or an identification number. GDPR also covers less obvious
examples of personal data through which one could reasonably identify an individual such as an IP
address, location data, mobile device identifier or factors specific to the physical, cultural or social
identity of that person.
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The Council's Senior Records Manager is the Councils Data Protection Officer. GDPR is o major factor
in driving change and the implication for Council is tighter timescales and increased fines (€20 miillion
or 4% of our business turnover). A GDPR Project Group was established and mandatory fraining was
provided for staff. The main remit of the Project Group was to examine and review the information
systems to ensure compliance with GDPR and prepare for the new legisiation which came into effect
on 25 May 2018.

Due to the large scale programmes of work required to transform the information management
culture within Council a programme of work entitled Information Management Transformation
Programme (IMTP) has been established. As part of the IMTP a Project Initiation Document was
developed to take forward the fransformation programme and a project team was established.

2. LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM - TRANSFORMATION

Due to complexities of three iegacy Councils and two transferring functions merging there has been
significant time and effort expended to establishing a sound foundation on which to build the new
organisation. Following an initial period of transition, the Council are now working towards a
programme of service transformation with Heads of Department working on designing the next level
(fourth tier) of the organisation structure. Fourth tier departmental structures were published in
October 2017 and these illustrated the posts (Unit Managers) that will report directly to Heads of
Department. Management and Unions are reviewing the protocol for applying the matching process
which must be agreed prior to implementation.

With effect from mid-February 2018 the Strategic Director of Performance commenced employment,
3. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (LDP)

The LDP which supports the delivery of the Council’s Community Plan ‘Connected’, 2017-2030 is
included as a current risk on the Planning Department risk register. The main risk in relation to delivery
of the Local Development Plan is that it may be subject to challenge at various stages of the
consultation process. The plan is technical, complex and process driven and factors that con hinder
the delivery of the plan include the resourcing and scheduling of appeals and availability of key
statutory partners to support the Council's plan. The LDP takes account of regional policy context set
out by the NI Executive and Central Government Departments. The plan wiil be produced in two
stages consisting of two separate documents which will shape development within the Borough in
the period to 2030. Prior to the preparation of the Pian Strategy and Local Policies Plan the Council
will identify-key issues in the plon area and will formulate a series of options for dedling with them. This
information is published as a Preferred Options Paper (POP) which will indicate the Councils prefered
options for growth and development in the area and will be the basis for consulting with the public
and stakeholders who will have an opportunity to put forward views and influence the LDP from the
outset. The Council has also published its Statement of Community involvement which defines how
we engage with the community and key stakeholders in the delivery of planning functions and in
March 2018 the LDP POP was issued for consultation. The LDP continues to progress in line with the
agreed timetable. The POP, Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report and Interim Scoping Report were
also published in accordance with the agreed timetable.

4. INTERREG HIA PROGRAMME IRELAND/NORTHERN IRELAND 2000-2006 PROJECT REF.026413
WOOD DERIVED BIOMASS HEATING

On 6 May 2011 the Depariment of Enterprise, Trade and Investment [DETI) wrote to Craigavon
Borough Council requesting a claw back of £198.747 in relation to the Eurcpean Funded Biomass
Boiler Scheme. On 23 November 2011 DETI served a Writ of Summons against the former Craigavon
Borough Council. 8oth insurance and legal advice has been sought over the last 4 years and at g
meeting with DETI formal mediation was considered as a way of resoiving this issue. Further
corespondence was made with the Department for the Economy (DfE) formally known as DETI,
advising that the Council agree to enter into a mediation process in order to resolve this issue. In
2018, DfE undertook to take this forward to their Audit Committee for consideration and currently the
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Councilis awaiting feedback from DIE in this regard. A provision for the clawback had been included
in the Council's accounts.

5. ARMAGH CITY AND DISTRICT COUNCIL - LEGAL CASE

This matter is very complex and lengthy and has lasted over 8 years. It relates to a portion of ground
that the Council owned in Keady and had been attempting to make available for health related
purposes.

There is an ongoing case with the NI Ombudsman. The Council is attempting to resolve and close this
case through a mediation process.

6. CYBER SECURITY

Cyber security comprises technologies. processes and controls that are designed to protect systems,
network and data from cyber-attacks. Effective cyber security reduces the risk of cyber-attacks and
protects organisations and individuals from the unauthorised exploitation of systems, networks and
technologies. Cyber-attacks can disrupt and cause considerable financial and reputational
damage to even the most resilient organisations. The most effective strategy to mitigate and minimise
the effects of a cyber attack is to build a solid foundation upon which to grow your cyber security
stack. The Council continually receive a high level of emails targeting users and systems particularly
spam emails about invoices, phone bills or delivery nofifications. Although email and web filters are
regulary updated at times security measures are playing catch-up against developments in online
fraud and spamming. Inrecent times some local councils had been attacked by malicious software.
particularly a form known as Ransomware. Whilst the Council's normal Anti-Virus software was
designed to prevent infection a new layer was designed to minimise the damage should infection
somehow occur. The new Anti-Virus and Windows updates were installed on all laptops and PCs.

As the Council's network and email accounts are subject to regular automated scripted attacks
which try simple passwords to log on to accounts, staff are regularly reminded to check the
auvthenticity of all emails or files coming into the organisation and guidance has been issued
regarding creating strong passwords.

In order to secure the Council's infrastructure and systems Cyber Security workshops were held for all

staff.

We propose over the coming year to address the above matters which should enhance our
governance-qrran ts.

On behalf of the Committee of the Council or the Members of the body meeting as a whole and by
the Chief Financial Officer.
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Armagh City Banbridge & Cralgavon Borough Councll
REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 .
INTRODUCTION

The Local Governmen! [Accounis and Audit] Regulations [Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies o prepare a
remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payabile by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local Government Finonce Act [Northemn

Ireland} 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations [Northern Ireland) 2012, which came into operation an |
April 2012.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors” Alowances applicable from 1 April 2017 were issued by the Depariment for Communities on
. 15 February 2017 {Circular LG 03/2017) and supersedes previous circulars. Detoils of the allowances paid to individual councillors are
published on the Council's website al www.ArmaghBonbridgeCraigavon.gov.uk.

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councillors were elected fo the 11 new councils for a four year term. Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigavon Borough Council had 4lcouncillors in 2017/18.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Councilis determined by the Council iniine with that determined by the National
Jaint Council (NJC] for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive Management Team,

Council appeintments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions' Code of Procedures on
Recruilment and Selection. which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competition.

Uniess otherwise stated over, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which ore open-ended.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Lacal Government Finance Act |Northern Ireland) 2011 and

the Local Government (Payments to Councillors] Regulations {Northern Ireland} 201 2 was:

Toble 1: Total Allowances pald te councillors {audited information)

Allowance 201718 20146/17
Total Allowances Number of Councillors Total Allowances Number of Councillors
£ recelving the Allowance £ teceiving the
Allowance

1395“: Allowance 593,763 41 583,114 46
Special Responsibility

Allowance 103,497 29 98,581 30
Mayor's Allowance

18,362 2 18,180 2

Deputy Mayor's

Allowonce 8,161 2 8,065 3
Mileage Allowance 51,033 34 45,995 35
Public Transport and

Other Travel 2,084 11 a6 1
Subsisience 828 9 642 10
Caurses/ Conferences

Visits [registration &

loining fees) 1,702 3 2,104 11
Dependents Carers

Allowance 3,392 4 3,809 3
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 782,822 760,536

Details of the allowances paid to individual counciliors in 2017/18 are published on the council website at
www, ArmaghBanbridgeCraigavon.gov.uk/council/councillar-information,

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Tearn. The following table provides details of the remuneration
paid fo senior emplayees in 2017/18. The Director of Performance joined Council on 17 February 2018, whilst the rest of the Executive
Managment Tearm were in post for the full year,

Table 2 - Table 2: Remuneration (including salary){audiled information]

Officers 2017/18 201617
Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total Salary (Full Bonus |Benefitsin Total
year Paymenis | kind (to year Payments | kind (to
equivalent in nearest equivalent in nearest
brackets £100) brackets £100)
where where
applicable) opplicable)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 115-120 0 #] 115-120 115-120 0 0 115- 120
R Wilson
Director of Place 85-90 0 0 85-90 80-85 0 0 80-85
O Murtagh
Director of Position 85-90 0 0 85-90 80-385 0 0 80-85
S O'Gorman
Director of Peopie 100 - 105 0 0 100 - 105 95 - 100 0 0 95 - 100
M Reardon
Director of Performance |5 - 10 (80 - 85) 0 0 5-10{80- 0 0 0 0
S McNicoll 85)
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Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management
Teom and the median remuneration of the Council's workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team in the financial year 2017718 was £115k - £120k,
This was 5.4 times the medion remuneration of the workforce, which was £21 8k, (2014/2017 5.2 times)

Table 3: Relafionship belween the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team and the median
remuneration of the Council's workforce (audited information)

2017/18 2016/17
Saiary Band of Highest Pa'd member of the £115-120k £115-120k
Median Total Remuneration £21 .8k £22.2k
Ratio 5.4 5.2

In 2017/18. no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team:.

Total remuneration includes salary. bonus paymenits ond benefits in kind.

Salary
"Salary” includes gross salary, overtime. and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments

Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisol process. Bonuses relate 1o the
performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The banuses reported in 2017/18 relate to performance in 2017/18,
No bonuses were paid in 2017/18. [2016/17 £nil)

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benetits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable
emaclument. No Benefits in Kind were paid to members of the Executive Mangement Team in relotion to 2017/2018, [2016/17 £nil)

Exit Packages for staft
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council during 2017/2018, together with tota! cost per band and total cost of the
compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2017/18 {audited information)

2017718 2018717
Number of Number of Total Total Cost of Number of Number of Total Total Cost of
Compulsory Other Number of | Packages in Compulsory Other Number of |Packages in
Severance Package | Redundancies | depariures Exit each Cost Redundancies| departures Exit each Cost
Cost Band agreed |Packagesin Band agreed Packages Band
each Cost £'000 In each £'000
Band Cost Band

£0 - £20.000 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0
£20,001 - £40.000 0 3 3 87, 0 0 0 0
£40.001 - £60.000 0 5 5 239 0 0 0 0
£60,001 - £80,000 0 4 4 275 0 0 0 0
£80.001 - £100.000 0 3 3 270 0 0 0 0
£100.000 - £150,000 0 4 4 437 0 0 0 0
£150.001 - £200,000 0 2 2 349 0 0 0 0
Total 0 21 21 14657 0 0 0 0

Costs of exit packages in 2017/18 reflect staff for whom decisions to grant voluntary redundancies were approved by Council during the 2017/18 year.
This includes staff who left before 31 March 2018 as well as those still in Council employment in 2018/2019.
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Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme {Northem Ireland) {the Scheme) which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, which provides
refirement benefils for council employees on a “career average revalued earnings™ basis from 1 April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were
built up on a "final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up refirement pension at the rate of 17/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension benefits in relation 1o
membership between | Aprit 2009 and 31 March 2015 were buiit up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each yeor of membership.
There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009, Pension benefits in relation to any membership
before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and 3/80ths (tox-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of
membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and
Cusloms (HMRC] limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £} of pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 . The Scheme application is modified 1o reflect the fact that councillors hold
an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued
ot a rate of 1/40th and therealter at a rate of 1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by confributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior 1o 1 April 2009, o rmermber's contribulion
rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration [excepl for those who were entitled to conltribute to the Scheme ol 5% before |
February 2003 ond have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member contribution rates, determined by the whale-time equivaient
rale of pay. were infroduced fram 1 April 2009. From | April 2015, the member contribution rafes are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for Ihe bonds for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in April each year in occordance with
the increase applied to a pension in payment. The bands, effective from | April 2017, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
| £0-£14.100 5.5%
2 £14,101 - £21,500 5.8%
3 £21,501 - £35,900 6.5%
4 £35.901 - £43.400 6.8%
5 £43,401 - £85,800 8.5%
& Maore than £85,800 10.5%

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund's actuary every three years at the friennial valuation. A formal friennial actuarial
valuation of the Fund s at 31 March 2016 was carried out in 2016/17 and set the employer conltribution rates for the 3 years commencing |
April 2017 as follows. in addition, a separate Deficit Funding Charge has been levied on Council at a rate equivalent to 1.8% of pensionable
pay and is paid outside of the payroll function.
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Table &: Employer Confribution Rates

Year Employer Contiibution Rate Deficit Funding
1 April 2017 - 31 March 2018 18% £498.300
1 April 2018 - 31 March 2019 19% £498,300
1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020 20% £498.300

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland] 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The tocal Government
Pension Scheme (Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations (Northem Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014, 8oth sets of
regulations are efftective from 1 April 2015,

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus far. However, the in-
year pension coniributions made by the Council for alt councillors during 2017/18 was £143,960. (201472017 £141,587).

The value of pension benefits of the maost senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2017/18 (ovdited information)

Officers Accrved Pension at Real Increase In pension| Real increase {decrease) | CETV at CETV at Reql
pension age and related at pension age in related lump sum of 31/3/18 31/3/17 |increase in
lump sum as at 31/3/18 pension age CEV-
and related lump sum £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
£'000
Chief Executive 40 - 45 plus 65 -70 lump 0-25 {0-2.5) 579 545 8
R Wilson sum
Director of Place 30 - 35 plus 55 - 60 lump 0-25 {0- 2.5} 514 470 23
0 Murtagh sum
Director of Position 25 - 30 plus 40 - 45 lump 0-25 (0-2.5) 347 314 14
S O'Gorman sum
Director of Peaple nil nil nil nil nil 0
M Reardon
Director of Performance 0 -5 plus nil lump sum 0-25 nil 2 nil 1
$ McNicoli

Nole: the Director of People is not @ member of the Local Government Pension Scheme {N1).

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits acerued by o member ot a particular point in time. The
benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and ony contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. it is a payment made
by o pension scheme or arangement fo secure pension benefits in anather pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a
scheme and chooses to fransfer the pension beneiits they have accrued in Iheir former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the
benefits that the individual hos accrued as a conseguence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just ineir service in a senior
capacity o which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes |Transfer Values)
{Amendment} Reguiations and do not take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resu ting from Lifetime Allowance Tax
which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee [including the value of any benefils transferred from anoiher pension scheme or arrangement| and uses
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Chief Executive

Date 0?414‘ iy
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| cerify that:

(@)  the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018 on pages 31 1o 101 has been prepared in the form
direcled by the Deparlment for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 35 to 56.

bl in my opinicn the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash
flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31 March 2018.

Chief Financial Officer

ol 0?4101‘&.

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolulion of the Performance & Audit Committee.

Do U

Chairman

2w afle
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARMAGH CITY BANBRIOGE AND
CRAIGAVON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council for
the year ended 31 March 2018 under the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The
financial statements comprise the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in
Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them. | have also audited
the informaticn in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements and
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18, of the
financial position of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council as at 31 March
2018 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Repulations (Northern Ireland)} 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder.

Basis of opinions

{ conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of Armagh
City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Financial Reporting Council's Revised Ethical Standard 2016, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other Information

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the Statement of
Accounts. The other infarmation comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts
other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in the report as
having bean audited, and my audit certificate and report. My opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Opinion on other matters
in my opinion:;

* the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities’ directions made under the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

¢ theinformation given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2018
is consistent with the financial statements.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities, the
Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility Is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
{Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

lam required to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error andd are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic dacisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms

part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Counci!
in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland} Qrder 2005 and for no other purpose,
as specified in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local
Government Bodies.

Matters on which | report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if:

* |n my opinion;
o the Annua) Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18 ;

® does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;
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* is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the Statement of Accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

© | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

* lissue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 200S; or

* ldesignate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
~ recommendation made to the Council; or

¢ | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005
and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

ey

Pamela McCreedy

local Government Auditor
Northern ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

2L September 2018
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Armagh Cily Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Councll
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Siatement for the year ended 31 March 2018

2017/18

{+ lncom
F33 ITICO] : :.\.::_, 'rﬂr..'”

Sen X £3, Y

Place Directorate : 2 15,869,056 4,540,450 11,328,606

5

13,087,709 3,340,236 9.727.473

People Directorote 2 60,550.857 11.759.750 48,791,107 52,905,365 11,612,475 41.292.8%0
Pesition Drectorate 2 13.569.672 3.343.041 10,226,631 8.495.782 3,550,334 4,945.446
Performance Directorate 2 10,182,713 287,305 9.895.408 8.869.524 325,979 8.543.545

Cost of Services on
Conlinuing Cperations

100.172,298 19,930,546 80,241,752 83,358,380 18,849,026 64,509,354

GeiDperahng 8 1,197,463 335965 861,498 1.339.579 116,740 1,222,839
Expenditure

Financing and Investiment

Income and Expendilure # 4966.988 450,850 4,516,140 3,808,040 442,798 3,365,742

Net Operating Expenditure 104,334,749 20.717,361 85,619,390 88,505,9%9¢ 19,408,064 69,097,935

Taxation andNon-Speciic hg,; 68876531 48,876,531 s 65.985.201 65.985.201
Grant Income

SEANEATSCIE) 6 s 106,336,749 89,593,892 (14,742.857) 88,505,999 85,393,265 {3.112,735)

Provision of Services

Surpius/{Deficit} on
revaluation of non-current 11 18,021,524 10,449,196
assets

Remeasurements of the

Net Defined Benelit 21 {905,000} {15,586,000)
Liabilily {Asset)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 17,114,526 {5.136.,804)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 373,649 (8,249,540}

A review of the presentation of local autherity financial statements resulted in changes o the Code of Accounting Practice. Councils
are required 1o report on the basis of how they are structured and how they operate, monitor and manage financial performance. The
purpose of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis {EFA} is 1o bring together the funding framework and the accounting fromework by
service. The EFA takes net expenditure chorgeable 1o taxation, reconciling this to the CIES surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services.
There is no impact on the balance sheet as a result of this change in accaunting policy and as such a third balance sheet is not
required



Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

Balance as at 1 Aprid 2014 16,780,212 7.B54 99¢ 21,494 25 026,500
Movement in reserves
during the year

Surplus/ [Deficit) on the
provision of services
Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & 5,201,524 - 114,740 5,318,264 {5.318,264) -
funding under regulations

Net increase before

translers to Stalutory and 2,088,788 - 116,740 2,205,528 (10.455,048) (8.,249.540)
Other Reserves

Transfers to / from

Statutory and Other [1.742.899} 1,742,899 - . -

Reserves

Increase/ Decrease in
year

{3.112,73¢) - . {3,112,736) . {3.112.736]

- - 2 - 15.136,804) (5.136.804)

{3.112,734) . A (3,112,734) {5.1346,804) (8.249,540)

345,889 1,742,89% 116,740 2,205,528 (10,455,068) (8.249.540)

Balonce as at 31 March 2017
Movement in reserves

17,096,101 9,597,893 538,434 27,232,428 75,925,770 103,158,198

during the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the . . v t
provision of services (16.742,:857) (16.742.857) 116,742,857
Other Comprehensive )

Income and Expenditure : - : 7.116.526 F7.116,52¢
TeIl Compehensive (16,742,857) : . (16.742,857) 17,116,526 373,669

Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & 17,708,726 - 335,965 18.044,691 (18.044,691) -
funding under regulations

Net increase before

transfers to Statutory and 965,869 - 335,945 1.301.834 (928,145) 373.649
Cther Reserves

Transfers to / from

Statutory and Other 2,320,585 (2.320.585) - - -

Reserves

Increase in year 3.284.454 {2.320,585) 335,945 1,301,834 {928.145) 373,649

Balance as at 31 March 2018

20,382,555 7,277,308 874,399 28,534,262 74,997,605 103,531,867




Armagh City Banbridge & Cralgavon Borough Council
Balance Sheet as af 31 March 2018

31 March 2018 31 M

Fixed Assets 1 200,192,937 193,045,087
Long Term Debftors 15 1,543,529 1.624,188
LONG TERM ASSETS 201,734,444 194,669,275
Inventories 14 345,000 327,889
Short Term Debtors 15 8,097,152 5.985.405
Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 6,838.302 9.640.775
CURRENT ASSETS 15 280,454 15,954,049
Short Term Borrowing W] 7 2129296 2,155,972
Short Term Creditors 18 10,426,306 8,889,993
Provisions ¥ 384,185 414,921
CURRENT LIABILITIES 12,941,787 11,442 8BB4
Long Term Creditors 18 30,489 -

Provisions 19 4,050,574 3105514
Long Term Borrowing 17 40,712,568 42,880.235
Other Long Term Liabilities 21, éc 55,749,636 50.014,510
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 100,543,269 96,002,259
NET ASSETS 103,531,864 103,158,19¢%

USABLE RESERVES

Capital Receipts Reserve 26 874,399 538,434
Capito! Fund 26 4316063 4,074,097
Renewal and Repairs Fund 26 515,517 -

Other Balances and Reserves 24 2,445,728 5,523,794
General fund 26 20.382,555 17,096,102

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capilal Adjustment Account 27 50,799,271 58,349,258
Revgluotion Reserve 27 81,455,564 68,204,486
Pensions Reserve 27 {55.703,000) {49,930.000)
Accumulated Absences Account 27 {983,152) {698.174)
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 27 {571,081} -
74,997,602 75,925,770
NET WORTH 103,531,844 103,158,199



Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2018

Net Deficit on the provision of services (16,742,857}

Adjustment for non-cash movements 21,506,449

Adiust for items included in the net surpius or dehcit on the

[3.112,738)

11,744,569

[284.718)

8,347,115

provision of services that are investing and financing activities 11.027.972)
Net cash tlows from operating activities 3,735,620
Cash flows from Investing Activities 25 {4.303.875)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 25 {2.234.217)
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalenis {2,802,473)
Cash and cash equivalents of the beginning of the reporting peried 9.640,775
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 6,838,302

(3.426,712)

{2,152,235)

2,768,168

6,872,607

9.640,775



Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financiol Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2017/18
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2018. The Council is
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the
Department for Communities in accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local
Government [Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern lreland) 2015 in accordance
with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS). The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of
Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revoluation of certain
categories of non-current assets and financial insfruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18
also requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council fransfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the fransaction will flow to the
Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried
as inveniories on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made. :

- Interest payable on borrowings and receivabie on investments is accounted for on
the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
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il

iv)

vl

i)

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors
is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

Acquisitions

Council has not acquired operations {or fransferred operations under machinery of
government arrangements} during the financial year.

Provision tor Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

Council has made a provision for the costs of outstanding job evaluations arising from
the Council's Single Status review.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in three months or less from the dalte of acquisition and that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in
vaiue. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdraits that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's
cash management,

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent
assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
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vii)

wiii)

Discontinued Operations

Council has not discontinued operations (or transferred operations under
combinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid
sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and
are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the
Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements eamed by
employees but not taken before the year-end and which employees can corry
forward into the next financial year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefifs are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's
decision fo accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to
the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement at the earlier of:

a} when the offer cannot be withdrawn or

b) when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund balonce to be charged with the amount payable by the
Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove
the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern lreland Local Government
Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government
Officers' Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to
members {retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the
Council.
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The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund

The Northern ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a
defined benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern lreland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will
be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
- assumptions about mortality rates, employee turmover rates , etc, and projections of
projected earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at cuirent prices, using a discount rate of 2.6%
{based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds on the iBoxx
Sterting Corporate Index, AA over 15 years with recently re-rated bonds removed from
the index).

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

guoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities - professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities - current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

- Within the Cost of Services

a) Current Service Cost - the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation {liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period.

b) Past Service Cost ~ {where applicable) the change in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan
amendment (the introduction or withdrawl of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan)
or a curtaiment {a significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the
plan}.

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement — (where applicable) arising where a council enters
into a transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or
all of the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan.

* Within Financing and Investment income and Expendifure

¢) Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability {Asset) - the change in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time.
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- Within ther Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

d) The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the
Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other income
derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on
the plan assets, less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the
plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

e) Actuarial Gains and Losses -~ changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from: i} experience adjustments (the effects of differences
between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and ii)
the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling - {where applicable) excluding amounts
included in the Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset).

- Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

f) Contributions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilitios and assets
due to payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution
increases pension due to the employee in the future).

g) Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments
into the scheme by the employer,

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
balance to be charged with the amount payabie by the Council to the pension fund
or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount caicutated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid
at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
emplovees.

Discretionary Benefits;

The Councit also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of
an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the
award and accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern
Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund.
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ix)

x)

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from
Central Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil
Service [NICS) Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members
(retirement lump sums and pensions). However, the arrangements for the NICS Pension
Scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified
specifically to the Council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a
detined contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is
recognised in the Balance Shest. :

Events After the Balonce Sheet Date

Events ofter the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be
identified:

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period - the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the finoncial statements and is
usually the date the Local Government Auditor issues his certificate and opinion.
Where material adjustments are made in this period they will be disciosed,

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the

Statement of Accounts.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their noture and amount is
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant
the items are to an understanding of the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

‘Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to

correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, ie in the curent and future years affected by the change and do not
give rise to a prior period adjustment,

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the
effect of fransactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position
or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the
new policy had always been applied.
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Xii)

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are comected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial instruments

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fail to be classified into just one
class of financial liability and two classes of financial assets:

Financial Liobilities
Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Available for Sale

Finoncial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured
ot fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES for interest payable are
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at
which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable {plus accrued
interest); and interest charged to the CIES is the amount payable for the year
according to the loon agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES in
the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as
part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange
of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the
CIES is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the CIES, regulations allow the
impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The Council has
a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan
against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid.
The reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge required against
the District Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financiat instruments
Adjustmeni Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

41



Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:

a. loans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are
not quoted in an active market

b. available-for-sale assets - that have a quoted market price and/or do not have
fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are then measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits fo the Financing and investment Income and Expenditure line in the
CIES for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the
Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the
CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

However, the Council has made aloan to a voluntary organisation at less than market
rates {softtoan). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES {debited to
the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over
the life of the instrument, resuiting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding
principal. Interest is credited to the financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the
rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to
increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions
require that the impact of soft loans on the District Fund Balance is the interest
receivabie for the financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited
to the CIES to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed by
a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Where assets are identified as impaired. arising from a poast event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original
effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.
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Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financiat instrument and are
initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable
payments, annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed
or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the CIES when it
becomes receivable by the Council.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the
following principles:

a. instruments with quoted market prices - the market price

b. other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow
analysis

c. equity shares with no quoted market prices - independent appraisal of company
valuations.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:

* Level | inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the authority can access at the measurement daie.

* Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 inputs - unobservabie inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and
the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for -Sale
Financial Assetfs. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred - these
are debited fo the Financing and investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES,
along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale
Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihcod arising from a past
event that paymenis due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable
payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. If the asset
hos fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the camying amount and the present value of the revised future
cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the
impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of
the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).
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Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.
along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-
Sale Reserve,

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less
any impairment losses).

Instruments Entered Into Before 1 April 2006

The Council has not entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be
accounted for as financial instruments. These guarantees, if they had been entered
into, would be reflected in the Statement of Accounts to the extent that provisions
might be required or a contingent liability note is needed under the policies set out in
the sections on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency,
the fransaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date
the fransaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at
the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting
gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the CIES.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is
reasonable assurance that:

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
b. the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the CIES until conditions attaching to
the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify
that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired
using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the
transferor,

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied,
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue
granis and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income {non-ring-
fenced revenue grants and all capital grants} in the CIES.

44



X

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES. they are reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be
vsed to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve. Where it has been applied, it'is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts in the Capitat Gronts Unapplied Reserve are fransferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Intangible Asseils

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlied by the Council as aresult of past events {e.g. software licences) is
capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will
flow frorn the intangible asset to the Council.

internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstratable that the project
is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources
being available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits
or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is
capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and
restricted to that incurred during the development phase {research expenditure is not
capitalised). '

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely
or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council's goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the
fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an
active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Councit meets this
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount
of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in
Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the CIES, An asset is tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired - any
losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of Services on
Continuing Operations in the CIES. Any gain or ioss arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the CIES.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the District Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds
greater than £5,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve,
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Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

Long Term confracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or deficit
on the provision of services with the value of works and services received under the
contract during the financial year.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate
the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value,
based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between
knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Investment properties are not depreciated
but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains
ond losses on revaiuation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing
and Investment Income line in the CIES and result in a gain for the Generat Fund
Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by
statutory arangements to have an impact on the District Fund Balance. The gains
and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme
{Northern Ireland) Regulations 2005. Locat Authorities are allocated annual target
figures for the maximum amount of biodegradable municipat waste that can be sent
to landfill but there are no tradable allowances. Itis not a ‘cap and frade' scheme
since landfill allowances are not tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not
recognised as assets on the Balance Sheet,
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buitdings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use
an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the
lease's inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The
asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial
direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums
paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability, Contingent
rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down
the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.

The Councilis not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation
and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annuat provision is
made from revenue towards the deemed capital investiment in accordance with
statutory requirements. Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced
by arevenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.
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Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the
services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the
pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the
lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an itemn of plant or
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the
commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off o the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same
line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). matched by a lease asset {long
term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down
the lease asset {long term delbtor} together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and
Expenditure line in the CIES).

The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitied by statute to increase the
General Fund Balance and will be required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where
a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount
due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital
Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are
paid, the element for the charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property is
used to write down the lease asset {debtor). At this point, the deferred capital
receipts are fransferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against councit tax, as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arangements for capital financing.
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement,
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The Council as Lessor - Operating lease

Where the Council grants an operating iease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rentalincome is credited to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES. Credits are made on a straight-line
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments
(e.g.. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carnrying amount of
the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying armount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES, Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is
not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount
before they were classified as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held
for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not
reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in
the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES as part of the gain or
loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals {if any) are credited to the same line in the
CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumutated for the
asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a dispésal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to
the Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated 1o the Reserve from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Staterment.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and that are
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property,
Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that
maintains but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits
or service potential {i.e.. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it
is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are inifially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
forit to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

¢. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantiing and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value,
unless the acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council . In the latter
case, where the asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the
carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value
and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income line of the CIES, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until
conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains
are credited to the CIES. they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated
historical cost

- dli other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use vailue - EUV)
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Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist
nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair valve.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued on a § year rolling
basis with 20% of assets being subject to a physical valuation each yvear and the
remaining 80% having a desktop revaluation carried out. Increases in valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unredlised gains.
However, gains are credited to the CIES where they arise from the reversal of a loss
previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only,
the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are
estimated o be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and,
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

d. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service line in
the CIES.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the canying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted
where material for depreciafion that would have been charged if the loss had not

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a
general fall in asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of
economic benefit specific to an asset as is in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An
exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land
and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets
under constructionl.
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Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

- buildings & infrastructure are depreciated on a straight line basis up to 50 years;
based on their carrying value over the estimated remaining useful life of the asset as
advised by a suitably qualified person.

- plant and equipment, vehicles and ICT are depreciated on a straight line basis on
their historic cost using a percentage of of the value of each class of asset in the
Balance Sheet.

The estimated useful life of high value vehicles is reviewed each year and, where
material, adjustments are made to extend the useful life by crediting the revaluation
reserve and debiting annual depreciation to the reserve each year.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose
cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are
depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value iand and buildings or equipment
assets,

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that
would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical
or environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their
contribution to knowledge and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They
would be held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the
maintenance of heritage.

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured {including the treatment of revaluation
gains and losses) in accordance with the Council's accounting policies on fixed
assets. The Council's collections of heritage assets are as follows:

- modern art sculptures in towns and parks.

- mayoral regalia.

- works of art and antique furnishings held by council.

- range of art and antiquities held in council museums,

Items held at Armagh County Museum and those on loan to Castle Ward and Ardress
House were all valued as at 31 March 2018.
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Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a tegal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Forinstance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a setflement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES in the
year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in
the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial
year - where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is
reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be
recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claimy, this is only recognised as
income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the Council settles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to
be financed from areserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that
year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CIES. The reserve is
then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that-there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, retirement benetfits, accumulated absences and provisions
discount rate and do not represent usable resources for the Council - these reserves
are explained in the relevant note to the accounts,

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading
accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of hoiding fixed
assets during the year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be
written off

c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.
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The Councilis not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation
and impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual
provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing
requirement (equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by
the Council in accordance with statutory guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by minimum revenue
provision (MRP) in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting fransaction with
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the twao,

Revenve Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been
charged os expenditure to the relevant service in the CIES in the year. Where the
Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the
amounts charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is
shown net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irecoverable.

The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

Due toits low levels of energy consumption, there is no requirement for the Council to
participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and
investment properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity
shareholdings [other financial instruments as applicable] at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transter a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes thot the fransaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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a} in the principal market for the asset or lability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of
non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair
value is measured or disclosed in the authority's financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

* Level 1 - quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Accounting Standards That Have Been issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the
Code) requires an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of
an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued
but not yet adopted. The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to
be applied retrospectively unless transitional arrangements are specified, this would
result in an impact on disclosures spanning two financial years.

Accounting changes that are infroduced in the 2018/19 code are:
* IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

* IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers including amendments to IFRS 15
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

* amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unreglised Losses

* amendments fo |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from Note 1a the Council has not had to make
any critical judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty
about future events.
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Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of ACcounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions
made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are
made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant
factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018 for which there is a
significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the
level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.

If the useful lite of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount
of the assets falls.

(i) Provisions

The Council has not made a provision for bad debt arising from non-collection of rate
income by Land & Property Services in future years as it is not certain how much
uncollected rates will be written off by LPS in future years. Also, Council has not made
a provision for the settlement of claims for back pay arising from Equal Pay settiements
due to the uncertainty of the amounts involved.

(iii) Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected
to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on
pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council
with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

(iv) Arrears

A review of significant debtor balances has resulted in a specific allowance for
doubtful debts.
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Asmagh Clty Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Councll
Noles to the Financlal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2

] Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure ond Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources {government grants. rents.
council lax and business rates] by local authonties in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in
accordance with generally accepted accounting prachces. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision maoking
purposes between the Council's drectorates

Place Directorate 8,746,939 2,581,667 11.328.606 8,147,650 1,579,823 9.727.473
People Directorate 38,803,818 9.987.289 48,791,107 35,256,413 4.036,277 41,292,890
Position Dreclorate 5.648.574 4,578,057 10,226,431 4,166,626 778,820 4,945,446
Performance Directorate 9,384,359 511,049 9.895,408 8.320.195 223,350 8.543,545
QOther Services & - . - - i

Other iIncome and Expenditure (65,870,143) 2,371,250 {63.498.893) {56,234,974) | (5.159.646) (461,396,620}

Surplus/ {Delicit) on General Fund
Balance in Year 3,286,453 | 20,029,212 (14,742,859 345,890 3,458,624 {3.112,734)

Closing General Fund 17,096,102 JA58 424 13,637 478

A review of the presentotion of locol authority financial statements resulted in changes to the Code of Accounting Practice
Councils are required to report on the basis of how they are structured and how they operate, monitor ond manage finanaial
performance. The purpose of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis {EFA) 1 to bring together the funding framework ond the
accounting framework by service. The EFA takes net expendilure chargeable to taxation. reconciling this 1o the CIES surplus or
deficit on the Provision of Services. There is no impact on the balance sheet as a result of this change in accounting policy and as
such a third balance sheet is not required.
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2

I Nole to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive at
the omounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves are
explained in the Movement in Reserves Slolement

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2017/18

Place Directorate 2,225,203 332,268 24,196 . 2,581,667
People Directorate 7.489,298 2,318,273 179,718 . 9.987,289
Position Directorate 4,009,583 519.736 48,738 . 4,578,057
Performance Directorate - 478,723 32,326 - 511,049
Other Services ik - - - -
Net Cost of Services 13,724,084 3,449,000 284,978 - 1 7,658.062_

Cther Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis {2,837,348) - 2,888,013 2,320,585 2,371,250

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services 10,884,736 3,649,000 3,172,991

2.320.585 20,029,312

L

Adjusiments to General Fund Balances are to meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting practices.,

- Adjustmenis for Capital Purposes:

This column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:

i Other operating expenditure - adjusts for capilal disposals with a transter of income on disposal of assets and the amounts
written off for those assets,

i} Finoncing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum Revenue
Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from financing and investment income and expenditure as these
are not chargeable under generolly accepted accounting practices.

iii} Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure - Capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under
generally accepled accounting practices. Revenue gronts are adjusted from those receivable in the year fo those
receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions
were satisfied in the year.

- Net Change for the Pension Adjusimenis:

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of I1AS 19 Employee Benelits pension related
expenditure and income:

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the autiority as permitied by statute
and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and invesiment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit liability is chorged to the CIES.

- Other Statutory Adjustments:
This represents the removal of the accumuiated absence chorge made by the authority as permitted by statute.

- Other Differences:

Ofher Differences between amounts debited/credited 1o the CIES and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under
statute:

The charge for services here is a siatutory adjusiment for a financial instrument relating o a decision by services to issue soft
loans to community crganisations. Soft loans are loans below market rofes. )
For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to General Fund
for the timing differences tor premiums and discounts.
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Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2015/17

Place Directoraie 1,481,172 78,284 20,367 1,579,823
People Directorate 5,343,851 532,591 139,834 6,036,277
Position Directorate 647,930 106,137 24,754 - 778,820
Performance Directorate 94,825 110,988 17,537 - 223,350
Other Services - - - -
Net Cost of Services 7.587.778 828.000 202,472 8.618,270
Other income and Expenditure from the

Expenditure ond Funding Analysis [3.482,084) - 45337 [1,742,899) [5.159.446)
Difference between General Fund surplus or defici

and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of

Services 4,105.694 828,000 247829 {1.742,899) 3.458.624
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Armagh Clity Banbridge & Craigavon Berough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

LB Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expendifure

Employee Benefils Expenses 7a
Other Services Expenditure
Support Service Recharges

Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment 4
Interest Payments kle]
Gain on the Disposal of Assets 8a
Other Expenditure

Total Expenditure

Income

Fees, Charges and other service Income

Interest and Investment Income b
District rate income 10e
Government grants and Coniributions 10a, 10c
Support Service Income

Other Income 9e

Total income

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of $ervices

2017718

kS

42,573,903 39,653,842
49.001,56% 36,632,594
8,932,790 7.188,683
2,448,602 2,618,263
47,752 54,252
3,332,133 2,358,365
106,336,749 88,505,997

(20,266,511} {18,965,747)
{139.459) {138,717)
{60,035,580) (57,841,281
{8.840.951) (8.123.919)
(311,381 {303.581)
(89,593,892) (B5.393,245)
14,742,857 (3.112,735)




LI Adjustiments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

I\l Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by stajute fo be excluded when
determining the Movement on the Genera! Fund Balance for the year;

f

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-current

assets 380,978
Derecognition [olher than disposal) of non-curent B
assets 813.746 1,148,587

Revaluation increases/decreases taken to

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 6,025,947 399.0%4
H

Depreciation charged in the year on non-current

assets 8.551.812 13,772,483 7,188,683 8.756.366

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital il

under statute 2,482,013 171,656
8

Carrying amount of non curent assets sold 383,717 170,992

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, invesiment 8

property and intongible assets {335.945) 47,752 {116,740} 54,252
0

Difference between finance costs calculated on an
accounling basis and finance costs colculated in
accordance with statutory requirements

21
Net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with IAS 19 10,981,000 8,08%.000
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure

12 {739.826} (1.022,593)
Copital Grants and Donated Assets Receivable ond B
Applied in yeor
{692.007) {167.978)
Capital Grants Receivabie and Unapplied in year 23
Rates Claw-Back Reserve
Adjustments in relation to Short-term compensated 27
absences
284978 202,492
Adjustments in relafion to Lessor Arrangements
Landfill Regulations Reserve Adustment 27
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment 27
571,081
Amounts not included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement but required by
statute to be included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
year
- ] - . 23
Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital
Investment (4.885,747) {4.650.671)
20

Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC
and retirement benefits payable direct to
pensioners [6.113.000) 16.231.000)

17,708,727 5,201,524

61



Net fransters {to

ing and Accounting Basis Nt

Capital Fund

Interest

From Capital

Other

Renewal and Repairs Fund
Interest

Other

Capital Receipts Reserve
Interest

Other

Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Interest

From Crther furids

Other

stafutory and other

(241,946) J
y (24).946) :
[515.517) (515.517) 150,298
3.078.068 3078068 (1,893,197
2,320,585

{1.893,197)

[1.742,899)

150,298

[3l Cost of Services on Continuing Cperations
(] General power of competence

Prior 1o Locol Government Reform on 1st April 2015, expenditure for special purposes was limited under Section 40 of the Loca
Governmenl Finance Act [Northern Ireland) 2011. This seclion was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act

[Northern Ireland) 2014.

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act {Northern Ireland] 2014, the Council has the power 1o do anything that
individuals generaily may do. Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is not
limited to benefitling the area or its residents nor is it limited by existing powers.

There was no expenditure under the power of competence during 2017/18.

[\ External Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following cosls relating to the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant
claims and other services provided by the Councils external auditors.

External Audit Fees

2017418

2018717

Grant Claim Certification Fees

Other Fees

Other fees payable 2017718 to NI Audit Office were tor Performance Improvement Audit 2017 £19k {2016/17 - £17k of which

£1.2k was for National Froud Initigtiave).



ing and Finance Leases

rases {Council as lessor]

The Council hos leased out property to Banbridge Enterprise Limited on o finance lease with a remaining term of 90 years.

The present value of lease payments receivable under the finance lease arangemenits is recognised as a receivable and
included in both short and long term debtors, The difference between the gross amount receivabie and the present value of

the amounts receivable is recognised as unearned finance income,

Gross receivables Irom finance leases

2018517

Long Term Debtors
Finance leases- gross receivables 118,209 119133
Less - Unearned finance income
Less - Unguoronleed residual value of properly - -
Net Present Value 118,209 119,133
Shorl Term Deblors
Finance leases- gross receivables 924 718
Less - Unearned finance income -
Less - Unguaranteed residual volue of properly . -
Net Present Value 724 918
Gross receivables from finance leases
No later than 1 year 924 218
Later than 1 year and na later than 5 years 3766 3.739
Later than 5 years 114,442 115,394
Total gross receivables | 119,133 | 120,051
Less-Unearned future finance income on finance leases
Less-Unguaranteed rasidual value of property -
Net investiment in finance leases | 119,133 | 120,051
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:

2017/18 20146/17

: £ £

No later than | yeor 924 918
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 3.766 3,739
Later than 5 years 114,442 115,394
Total gross receivables [ 119,133 | 120,051

The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the year are estmated at £nil

{Previous year £nil

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is Enit (comparalive year £nil)

No contingent rents were recognised as receivable by the Council,

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The averoge nferesl rate
conltracted is opproximately 0.73% (comparative year 0.73%)
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The Council. in accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out property and equipment under
operating leases for the following purposes:;

- for the provision of community services. such as sports faciliies, tourism services and community cenires

- for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for small local businesses

- any other purposes

Rental income recognised in the CIES in the current year amounts to £410,184 {2014/17 - £102,748),

The lease contracts are all non-cancellable and do not include an extension option. The lease terms ore between 1 and 17
years. Future minimum lease income is set out below:

2017148

Minimum lease rentals receivable:

No loter than 1 year 291,784 - 43,303 -
Later than | year and no later than 5 years 1,045,474 - 111,998 -
Later than 5 yeors 568.861 . 325 | -

The assets leased by the Council to third parties are included in the following categories of Property, Plant and Equipment with
camying volues of:

2017718

Landiand

Bulldin :

Cost . 381542010 35,154,031
Accumutated depreciation and

impairments at 1 April {6,182,278 - (4.526.817} -
Depreciafion charge for the year {1.392.380 - [1,461,514] -
Impairments I o - G

Revaluation Movements as at 31 March 3,142,383 488,919

33,721,926

Fult current value of leased assets is included even though the full asset is not leased [only part of the asset is leased] os only a
full voluation is received.

ol

A number of Councifs vehicies are held under finance leases. The assels are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
which form an integral part of property, plant and equipment [see note | 1g-leased assets).

Council holds some equipment under Finance Leases. The assets are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment which form
an integral part of property, plant and equipmenit jsee note 11g-leased assets).

No contingent rentals were recognised as an expense in the CIES during the reporting period under review, and no future sub
lease income s expected to be received. as all assels are used exclusively by the council.

The lease agreemenis for the vehicles and IT equipment include fixed lease payments and a purchase option al the end of
the respective lease terms. The agreements are non-canceliable but do not include any further restrictions,

Future minimum finance lease payments at the end of each reporting period under review are as follows:



[z017778

[Finance leases payments 43,968 51,441 - 95.409
Lass: finance charges {4,094] {4.805) (8,899)
Nei present value | 39.874 | 46,634 | G| 86,510
2016/17

Finance leases payments 43,948 95.409 - 139,377
Lass: finance charges {4.094) (8.899) - {12,993)
Net present value [ 39,874 | 86,510 | -] 124,384
2015/16

Finance leases payrments 12,987 5,655 - 18,642
Lass: finance charges {1.785) {1.105) - {2,890)
Net present value | 11,202 | 4,550 | =) 15,752

.

2
39.874

Current liabilities 39,874 11,202
1I.t:|ng ferm liabilities 46,636 86,510 4,550
Total | 86,510 | 126,384 | 15,752

The Council has ocquired its office photocopiers and printers by entering into operating leases which expire April 2018.

.eases {Councll as fes:

The expenditure charged to services in the CIES during the year in relation to these leases was:

Minimum lease payments

46,424

Contingent rentals

Less: Sublease payments receivable

Total

46,424 |

29,978 |

1,483 |

1011

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were made or received. No sublease income is expected os all assets
held under operating lease agreements are used exclusively by the Council,

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases in future years are set out below:

Minimum lease rentals poyabile:

No later than | vear 52.674 - 1,483
Later thon | year and no later than 5 years 69,894 - 4,472 -
Later than 5 years ! 337.781 - 3512
Total | 440,352 | - | 9.467 | -
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Employvee Costs and Member Allowances

-] 5toll Costs 2017718 201817

Salaries and Wages 33710415 ] 31,057,971
Employers NIC 2,840,451 2.737.4%0
Ernployers Superannuation 6,023,037 5.858,381

Totol stalf costs

In addition, agency costs during the year amounted to £172,928 (2016/2017 £234,868).

Staff costs include votuntary redundancies totalling £1,657k as detailed in the Renumeration Report. {2016/2017 £nil).
Additionally, staff costs include £50,697 charged to the | & E as a result of an under provision in prior years {2016/2017 includes
£395k charged for under provision}

The Council's cument confribution rate to NILGOSC scheme is 18% along with a conlribution for Deficit Funding. At the last
acturial valualion, dated 31 March 2016, the Fund's assets as a whole were sufficient 1o meet 96% of the liabiiities accrued up
to that date.

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fullfime equivalent employees

[ Average Mumber of Employees 201718 2018/17
Place Directorate 89 89
People Directorate 854 840
Position Directorate : 152 138
Performance Directorate 108 107
Other Services -

Full-ime numbers employed ' ) B
Part-time numbers employed 390 382

Total Numbe

[ 1]



es Remuneration

£50,001 to £60,000

£60,001 to £70,000 4 k]
£70.001 to £80.000 5 C
£80.001 to £90,0000 2 2

£90.001 to £100.000

£100.001 1o £110,000

£110.001 to £120.000

Total Number

Salaries . o
Basic allowance 593,763 583,114
Mayor's & Depuly Mayor's Allowance 26,523 26,245
Special Responsibility Allowances 103,497 98.581
Dependents carers dllowance 3.392 3,809
Employer costs 200,649 183.924
Mileage 51.033 45,995
Conferences and Courses 1.702 2.104
Travel & Subsisience Costs 2912 488
Miscelloneous Costs - -
Severance Payments

783,471

944,440

[ANorthern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

As aresult of Reform on 15t April 2015, staff transferred from Central Government to the Council are members of the Northemn

Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and Fabilities. The most up to date actuarial valuation was camed
out as at 31/03/201 2. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuory and updaied to reflect current conditions and
rolled forward to the reporting date of the DOF Superannuation and Other Alowances Resource Accounts as at 31 Morch

2018.

For 2017/18, employers’ contributions of £292k [2016-2017 £271k) were payable 1o the NICS pension arangements at one of
three rates in the range 20.8% o 26.3% of pensionable poy. based on salary bands. The scheme's Actuary reviews employer

contributions every four years following a full scheme valuation. A new scheme funding valuation based on data os at
31/03/2012 was completed by the Actuary during 2014/15. This valuohon was used to determine employer contribution rotes
for the introduction of a new ¢areer average earming scheme from April 2015, The conkibution rates are set fo meet the cost of
the benefits accruing during 2017/18 ta be paid when the member retires, ond not the benefits paid during this period to
existing pensioners.

Current employees can opt to open a parinership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an employer contribution. No
Council employees currently avail of this scheme and no new employees are able to join as it is o closed scheme.

During the year 7 officers retired early on ill-heaith graunds af nil cost 1o Council {2016/2017: 7 aificers at nil cost).
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-l Cther Operaling Expenditure
I.] Surplus/Reficit on Non-Current Assets (excl Investment Properies)

Proceeds from sale [335.945) 116,740)

Carrying amount of non-current
assels sold (excl investment

Properties} 383.717 170,992

47.752 54,252

b Other Operating Income/Expenditure

Income 2 -
Expenditure 813,744 1,168,587

813,746 1.168.587
Other Operating Expendifure B 201607
(Surplus} / Deficit on Non Cumment Assets 47,752 54,252
Other Operating {Income) / Expenditure 813,744 1,168,587

861,498 1,222,839
LA Finoncing and Investment Income and Expenditure

-] Interest Payable and Similar Charges

2006117

Lease/hire purchase inferest 4,094 4915

Bank interest 12,267 1,346
Government Loan interest 2.432.241 2,612,002

Commercial Loan interest -
Other interest [please specify] & %

2.448.602 2.618.263

-] Interest and Investment Income

Bank Inlerest
Employee car loan interest 544 1.379
NIHE Loan interest receivable 122,933 130,093
Investment income on Fund Balances
Capital Func . =
Repairs & Renewals Fund - -
Other Funds - -
Other Investment income 459

139,449 138717

[3 Pensions interest costs

Net interest on the net defined
benehi ligbility {asset] 1.219.000 1.030.000

1.219.000 1,030,000
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d Surplus/{Deficit) on trading operations

Income lr frog_ -

Expenditure’ -

|Surplus) /Deficit for the year -

e Income, Expenditure and changes In Fair Value of Investiment Properiies

1 i

1 114 1

ncome Including rental Income {311.381)

(303,581

Expenditure 64,734

159,778

De-recognition in relation to
amounts written off =

Net income from investment

properties (244,647}

{143,803)

Surplus/deficit on sale of
Investment Properties

Proceeds from sale =

Carrying amount of investment
propertias sold S

{Surplus) /deficit on sale of
investment Properties:

Changes in Fair Value of
Invesiment Propertles

1,911,568

1,664,921

{143.803]

Financing and Invesiment Incame

and Expenditure

21

hcome  Expenditure

2

rneresi Payabile and Similar

Charges 2,448,602 2,448,602 2,618,263 - 2.618.243
Interest and Investment Income - [139.469) [139.449) - {138.717) {138,717)
Pensions interest cost 1,219,000 1,219,000 1,030,000 1.030.000
Surplus/{Deficit] on frading

operations - \ 3 N 2 q
Other investment income 64,734 {311,381} [244,647) 159.778 [303,581) {143,803}
Changes in Fair Value of

Investiment Properties 1,911,548 1.911.548 x

5.643.904

{450.850)

5,193,054

3.808.041

3,365,743

L*Bl Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Jeevonveronts |

General [8.148,944] | |7.955,941)
Qther 5
{8.148.944]  |7.955.941]

(442,298}




:]Revenue Granls - Unapplied

Government & Other Grants - . ”
Conditions met and applied in :
veor

Other 2 %

4 Caopital Grants and Donated Assets - Applied

N a
Government & Other Grants - {692,007}
Conditions met and applied in
yeaor

Government & Other Grants -
Transfer from receipts in advance
[Gonated Assefs - Condifions mel
Donated Assets - Transfer from
donated assets creditor

(167.978)

1692,007) (167,978

-] Capital Granis - Unapplied

Govmmenl & ther Grants -
Conditions met and not applied in

yvear . =
Other - -

N bistrict Rates ‘

Current year {60.035.580} | {57.861.281})

Finalisation - previous year - -
Transitional Relief = &

Finalisation - other years

160.035,580] [57.861.281]

Taxalicn and Men Specific Grant Income

District Rote Income

(40,035,580

{57.861.281)

Revenue Grants (8.148,744) {7,955,941)
Capital Grants and Confribufions {692,007) {167.978)

(68.876.531) (45,988,200)
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Intangible Assets

The Council olso owns Intangible Assets which relate solely to market rights. The assets are not amortised.

ntangible Assels

Marke! Trading Righfs

Investment Properties

Reclassifications and transfers lo/from investment properties are as follows:

- Loughgail Gate Lodges reclassified as operational,

- Jubilee Park Armagh reclassified as operational

- Tandragee Municipal Offices including toilets & Store reclassified as surplus

- Dobbin streef Clinic reclassified as surplus

- Shop at 74 Upper English Street reclassified as surplus/disposed

- 42 Upper English Street {St Patrick’s Complex) reclassified as surplus.

- Offices ot 2 Newry Road, Armagh, were transterred to investment properties fram operational,
- NSMC tronsferred 1o investment properties from operalional.

Rental Income from Investment Activilies

311.381 303,581
Direct Operating expenses crisung from investment properties (64,734) {159.778)
Net gain/{loss} ! 246,647 | 143,803

Heritage Assels

Heritoge Assets held at Armagh County Museum and those on loan to Castle Ward and Ardress House were all valued as at

31 March 2018.

Other heritage asset disclosures are included at note Ta(xxii) .



Assets Held for Sale

Adjustments belween Funding and Aceounling
|

[Cost or Valuation

Balance as at 1 April 2017

Adjustments between cost/value & depreciation/impairment

Transferred from Non-Cumrent Assets during year

Assels Held for Sale Donations

Assels Held for Sale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revaluation
Reserve

|[Fevaiuafion increases/ Eecreoses IaEen fo Surp us or Dehicif on The

Provision of Services

Assets Held for Sale Impairment @ Cost 1o Provision of Services

Derecogmtion - Disposals

Derecognition - Other

Reclassified from Current Assels Held for Sale lo non current Assets
Held for Sale

Transferred lo Property. Plant & Equipment during year

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Impairment

Balance as at | April 2017

Adjustments between cosl/value & depreciation/impairment

Impairment losses/reversals taken to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services

Derecognifion - Disposals

Derecogpnition - Other

[Feclassified from Cument Assets Held for Sale 1o non current Assels

Transferred to Froperty, Plant & Equipment during year

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Net Book Value

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Balance as at 31 March 2017

Cost or Valvation

Balance as at 1 April 2016

Adjusimenis between cost/volue & depreciation/imparment

Transterred from Noen-Current Assets during year

Attels Held for Sale Donations

Assels Held for Sale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revaluation

Revoluation increases/decreases taken to Surpius or Deficit on the

‘Assels Held for Sale Impairment @ Cost o Provision of Services

Derecognition - Disposals

Derecognition - Other

Reclassified fram Current Assets Held for Sale fo non current Assels

lransterred to Property. Plant & Equipment dunng year

Balance as at 31 March 2017

Impairment

Balonce as at | April 2014

Adjustments between costivalue & depreciation/fimpairment

Impairment lasses/reversals taken to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services

Derecognition - Disposals

Derecognition - Other

Reclassified from Current Assels Held for 0le 1o non cument Assels

Transferred to Property, Plont & Equipment during year

Balance as at 31 March 2017

The Council has no long-term assets that it tends fo dispose of as at yeor end.

T
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Long-Term Assets - Leased Assets

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2017 424,604 375858 800,452
Adjustment to opening Balances {30,000} 1283293 (313,293}
Revalualion 73.449 73.44%
Additions - - -
Disposals 5 - -
At 31 March 2018 468,053 92,565 580,418
Depreciation

Al 1 Apiil 2017 318,331 231,753 550,084
Adjustment to opening Balances (30,000 (216,304 (244,304)
Revaluation - - -

| Disposals - 2 .
Provided for year 29.954 10080 40.014
At 31 March 2018 318,285 25,507 343,792
Net Book Value 149.748 | §7.058 | 214,824
[Cost or Valuation

At 1 Apnl 2015 668.032 159,914 827.946
Adjustment to opening Balances [243.428 62,049 {181,379}
Adlditions - 153.895 153,895
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2017 424,604 375,858 800.462
Depreciation

Al ) Aprit 2016 659,941 150,468 810.40%
Adjustment to opening Balances {358,072 42,049 (296,023}
Disposals - - -
Provided for yvear 16,462 19,236 35.498
At 31 March 2017 318,331 231.753 550,084
Net Book Value 106,273 144,105 250,378

Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets

The Council holds surpius assets to the value of £3.5M

78
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Capital Expenditure and Caopital Financing

NOTE: The total Copital Expenditure incurred in the yeor [and comparative year) is shown below - including the value of
assets acquired under finance leases and PFIJPPP confracts together with the resources that have been used 1o finance it
Where Capital Expenditure is fo be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used, the expendiure results
in an increase in the CFR, a measure of the Capital Expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yel to be

financed. The CFR s analysed in the second part of this note.

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

66,491,145

£
48.456.343

Capital Investiment

Property, Plant and Equipment

11

5,860,359

3,711,430

Investment Properties

Intangble Assefs

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Copital under
Statute

2,482,013

171,656

Derecognise Cther

[577.835)

{7.062)

Investments

Sources of Finance

Copital Receipls

Government Grants and Other Conirbutions

10

[692.007)

(167.978]

Transfers frorm Eormarked Reserves

$ums set aside from Revenue:

|Dwect Revenue Contributions

[739.824)

1,022,593)

Minimum Revenue Provision

14.885.747)

4,650,671}

Explonaotio

Increose in undedying need 1o borow

64,471,145

£2,115,113)

Assets acqurred under finance leases

153,895

Assels acquired under PFI/PPP contracts

Increase/[decrease) in Copital Financing Requirerment

[1.965.218)

The Council has an ongoing programme of capital works including the following:

Schemes underway at year end amounted to £47m, the maijority of which relates to the South Lake Leisure Cendre.

£

Granf Ald/

Funding
E

Future Capital Commiiments

i

Schemes underway 61,126,165 14,206,165 44,920,000
|Committed 28,416,800 6,335,000 22,081,800
Vehicles & Equipment 9,241,900 9.241,900

78,243,700
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Qil and Fuel 52,042 42,736
Stores 193,252 191,934
Other Stock 99,706 93.219

[k

Long Term Debtors

Government Departments

Other Councils

Public corparations and trading funds

IBodlies external to general govemnment

Employee cor loans

3835

Revenue Grants

Capital Grants

Interest Receivable

Capital Debtors

Loans and advances

Finance lease debitors

Trade debiors

NIHE Loans

1,387.885

1,501,170

Other

155.644

119,133

Impairment of ioans and receivables

Government Departments 2,971,018
Other Councils : 195,453 418,897
Public corporations and trading funds & -
Bodies external 1o general government 125,375 359.533
NIHE loans 344,578 108,360
Employee car loans 1,227 6,626
Revenue Grants -
Capital Grants -

Interest Receivable 1.700

Capital Debtors 32,322 -
Value Added Tax 1,341,183 1.264.393
Prepayments 288,649 253,558
Finance lease debtors 924 218
Other 75399 249,018
Trade receivabies 411,782 585,009
impairment loss - Trade receivables {217,622} {231.925)

Tofal Short-Term Deblors

Tolal Debtors

The largest proporfion of Council's Debtors relates to Distnct Rates and Government Grants.

B.097.152

§,640,681

5985405

7,609,593



14 Investments

[+ Lo Term Investiments

Investments - general

Investments - repairs and renewals

Investments - capital fund

Investments - other

Analysed aver:

Money market deposits

Other deposits

("B Shord-Term Investments

Investments - general

Investments - repaws and renewals

Investments - capital fund

Investments - other

orf-term Investments

Money market deposits

2006007

Other deposits

Tolal Shord-term Invesiments

17 B .
[+] B 0 () B !
Loans re-payable within one year 2,089,422 2,116,098
Finance Leose Principal 39.874 37.874

Tetal Short Term Berrowing

Between | and 2 years 1,958,733 2,089,422
Between 2 and 5 vears 6.695,272 5,805,997
Between 5 and 10 years 11,312,839 13,720,769
In more than 10 years 20.745,724 21,264,047
Analysed over.

Finance Lease Principal -

Loans 5.000.000 5,000.000
Government Loans fund 35712547 37,880,235

interest rates on Government Loans and Lender Ophon Buyer Option [LOBOJ Loans range from between 3% and 15.75%
Government Loans Fund 40,712,548 42,880,235

Total Borrowing 42,841,844 45,036,207



2017/148

Government Departments 754,839 743,117
Other Councils 54,129 238,899
Public corporations and trading funds - -
Bodies external to genero’ government 600 45,791
Rates clawback - -
VAT 245,945 121,243
Remuneration due to employees 1,465.294 498,024
Accumulated Absences 983,153 698,174
Loan Interest Payable - -
Capital Creditors - -
Receipts in advonce 708,114 728,684
Trade creditors - -
Other i 6.214,232 5,816,061

Total Short Term Credifors

10,426 304

B.BEY 973

Long Term Creditors

Government Departments

Other creditors {alling due after more than one year

QOther Councils

Public corporations ond trading funds

Bodies external to general government

Rates clawback

Remuneration due to employees

Accumulated Absences

Receipts in advance

Trade creditors

Other

Total Long Term Credilors

Total Creditors 10,456,795 8,889,993

The largest proportion of Council's creditors increase reloies to remuneration to employees.

Payment of Invoices

The Council has a torget. where no other terrms are agreed. of paying suppiier invoices within 30 calendar days. During the
yeaor the Council paid 30.410 invoices totaling £48,077,025. (2016/17 29,179 inveices otalling £41,241.750).

The number of disputed invoices were 9,612.

The Council paid:

17.504 {57.2%) invoices with 30 calendar days farget:
5.657 {18.5%) invoices within 10 working doys torget: and
13,106 {42.8%) invoices outside of the 30 day targel.

The average number of days taken to pay suppliers during the year was 24 8! days.



1%

Unused o ¥ .' t Bolonce as at 31

durtng yeor ; March 2018

Landfill - Craigavon 2.564,495 475,259 [60,259) 571,081 3,550,576
Single Status 416,921 B89.017 119,753) - . 386,185
Landfill - Armagh 141,019 . 134,698) [4.321) - -

Leqal Issues 400.000 100.000 - - - 500,000

Curmrent Provisions 416.921 89.017 119,753) - - 386,185
Long Term Provisions 3.105.514 575,259 194,957 14.321) 571.081 4,050,574

3,522,435

664,274

{316.710) (4.321) 571.081

4,435,761

Comparative Yeor

0 o o 0 0
Landfill - Craigavon 2,683,782 - {65,440} - {53.847) 2,564,495
_§in_g|e Status 472,436 228,644 (284.159) - - 416,921
Londlfill - Armagh 245,019 - - (105.000| 141,019
Legal Issues 400.000 - - 400,000
{349,599)
Current Provisions 472,436 228.644 {284,159} - 414,921
tong Term Provisions 3.329.801 - {65,440} {105,000] 53.847) 3,105,514
Total 3,802,237 228,644 (349,599} {105,000) (53,847) 3,522,435

Landifill - Craigavon

NI Environment Agency required that an adequate provision is made for landfill oftercare costs. This was formally revalued in
2016/17 by an external company to ensure that the provision is an odequate estimate for the landfili cost liability.

During 2017/18 the Council sought independent external professional advice fram its financ:al advisors, Aflingclose regarding
discount rates for landfil. Based on the advice provided, discount rates based on PWLB borrow ng rates factored for inflation

have been applied. The movement relating to the discount rates has been mitigated via the Provision Discount Rates
Reserves in the unusable reserves in Note 27h,

Single Status

This prowision is set aside to provide for costs associoled with a review of salaries and wages. This process should completed
during the 2018/19 financial yeaor.

Landfill - Armagh

This represents funds for the land purchase in respect of a former landfil site which closed a number of yeors ago, which was
completed durng 2017/18.

Legal Issues

The prowvision is sef aside for potential legal costs and repayment claims that are currently on-going.
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Financiai Instruments

The Council has no material exposure to any of the risk types identified below in its dealings with Financial Instruments,

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures 1o the Council's customers,
Customers are assessed, laking inte account ther financial position. past experience and other factors. with individual credit
limits being set In accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council The provision for bad
and doubtful debls reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by trade debtors and, as such, there is na
further additional estmated exposure to default and inability to collect,

Trade debtors and invoiced government debt, inclusive of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows:

Tracle debilors, inclusive of VAT, can
be analysed by age as follows:

Less than one month 616,635
Two to three months 157,793
More than 3 months 121,426

There is no historical expenence of default in relation fo deposits with banks and other financial institutions. Therefore there is
no estimated exposure 1o risk of default.

Liquidity Risk

As the Council has ready access to borowings from the Department of Finance's Consolidated Fund. there is no significant
risk that it will be unable 1o rase finance to meet its commitments under Financial Instrumenis. The matwity analysis of
financial iabilihes i1s included in notes 16 fo 18. Al irade and other payables are due for payment within one yeaor,

Market Risk
Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed 1o risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its nvestments and deposits but the
potential risk and exposure is mivmal during 2017/18. The Council is in receipt of loans from the Depariment of Finance,
however these loans are ot fixed concessionary interest rates that differ from the prevailing market rates,

Forelgn Exchange Risk
The Council hos a Euro bank account: for payments however due to the size of the bank balance this would not be

considered o maternal exposure to loss ansing from movements in exchange rales.

Fair Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans

The Councilisin receipt of loons from the Department of Finance at concessionary interest rates that differ from the
prevailing market rates. The lair value of these loans is £60,753,675 broken down as follows:

£
Government Loans 54,351,675
Market Loans 6,402,000
Total 60,753,675

The Council has made a tloan to an organisation atiess than market rates [soft loans). Thus the fair vaiue of the loans} wouid
be less than the amount of the cash lent. The Department has directed that lair value consideration for these loans is not
necessary this year but the detail of the loons is shown below.,

Yoluntary Body in Receipt of Laan Amounl  Repayment Due

Armagh Business Cenire




21

Retirement Benefits
Paricipation in the Northern Ireland Locat Government Officers’ Pension Fund.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers refirement benefits.
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees refre. the Councit has a commitment to make the
paymenis that need to be disclosed ot the time that employees eamn their future entitiement.

The Council parhicipates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund administered by the Northern
Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuotion Committee. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and
employees pay contributions into o fund, calculated at o level intended to balance the pension's habilities with investment
assets.

Transactions relating to retirement benefits - Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement Charges:

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Conlinuing Operations when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Counci is required to make against district rates is based on the cash payable n the year. and the
real cost of refirement benefits is reversed out in the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulations line. in the Movement on Reserves Statement.

The following transactions have been made in the CIES and the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis
under reguiations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement durng the year:

Net cost of services:

Eurrenr service cost 2,598,000 6,655,000
Past service cost/{gmn) 164,000 404,000
Gains and losses on seltiements ar curtailments -

Net operating expenditure: |

Net Interest on net defined benefit Liability |asset] 1,219,000 1,030.000

Tolal Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services 10,981,000 8,089,000

Movement In Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made for refirement benefits in accordance
with 1AS 19 and the Code {10.981.000) (8.089.000}

Actual amount charged against the general fund batance for
pensions in the year:

Employers conlibutions payable to scheme 6,113,000 6.231.000

fjustment o General Fund (4,868,000} {1,858.000)

The service cost figures include an allowance for adrminisiration expenses of £0.119m (1,24%),



Remeasurements recagnised in Other

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

E

Liability _gginsfjlossesi due to change in assumptions 4,865,000 51,101,000
Liability gains/{losses) due to due to demographic changes - {1,544,000)
Liability ;xperience gains/{losses) urising n-the year 823,000 (11,831,000}
Actuarnial gains/(losses) on plan assets [4,783.000) {22,140,000}
Qther - -

Total goins/(loises) iecognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

705,000

15,586,000

and liakilities in relation o relirement benelis

citiclion of present value of the scheme liakilities:

£
237,529,000

201617

£

Balance as ot 1 April 188,704,000
Cument service cost 9,598,000 6,655,000
Interest cost 6,145,000 4,564,000
Contributions by members 1.879.000 1,812,000
Remeasurement (g_o-ns;- and losses:
-Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumption] 4,865,000 51,101,000
-Actuarial gcénsflosses orising_; from demogpphqc chcmg_;es - (1.544,000)
-Actyarial gains/iosses arising on liabilities from experience 823,000 {11.831,000)
-Othex (it applicable] - : -
Past service costs/igoins) 164,000 404,000
Losses/[gains) on curtailments - -
Liabilities extinguished on settlements - -
Estimated unfunded benefits paid {92.000) {71.000)
Estirnated benefits paid {4.293,000) {4,245,000)

Bolance s af 31 March

256,418,000

237,529,000

Bolance as at 1 April 187,599,000 156,218,000
Interest Income 4,926,000 5,534,000
Contributions by members 1.879.000 1,812,000
Coniributions by employer 6,021,000 6,140,000
Coniributions in respect of unfunded benefits 92,000 91.000
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) 4,783,000 22,140,000
Assels dutributed on selllements - -

Unfunded benefits paid {92,000 {21,000
Benefits paid e 14,293,000 14,245,000

Bolonce o3 at 31 March

200.915,000

187,599,000

The aclual relurn on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £2.709m (2016717 gain of £27.474m).

Foir Walue of Plan Assels

Equity investments 143,453,310 139,761,255
Bonds 24,913,460 21,573,885
Property 20,091,500 19,697,895
Cash 9.041.175 4,877,574
Other 3.415.555 1,688,391

The above asset values are at bid value as required by 1AS 19

The amounts included in the foir value of plan assets for property occupied by the Council wos nil.



The Council's share of the Net Pension Liability (included in the Balance Sheet):

Nel Asset/|L

ts and liakilities

For Value of Assets in pension scheme

Fair Value of Employer Assels 200,915,000 187,599,000
Present value of funded defined benefit abligation [255.231,000) {236,133,000)
Pension asset/{liability) of Funded Scheme [54,316,000) [48.534,000)
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit o_bligalion {1,387,000) {1.,396,000}
Other movement in the liability [asset} iif applicable) - -
Net assel/(liability) arising from the defined benefit obligation 155.703.000) (49.930.000)
Amount in the Bolance sheet:

Liabilities [55,703,000) (49,930,000
Assets &

(55.703.000)

200.915,000

(49, 920.000)

187,599,000

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

(256,618,000)

{237.529.000)

(55,703,000}

Surplus/{deficit) in the Scheme

sed in Other Comprehensive

Amount red

Actuariol gains/(losses)

(49,930,000)

15,586.000

Expected Return on Plan Assets

ncrease/(decrease) in imecoverable surplus from membershup fall and
other factors

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure L 205,000 15,586,000
Cumulative actuanal gans and losses 16,491,000 3.195.812
History of experience gains cmci losses:

Experience gains and {losses) on assets {4,783,000) {22.140,000)
Experience gans and {losses) on liabilities 823.000 {11.831,000)

The habiiities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits The talat
ability of £55.703m hos a substantial mpact on the net warth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a
net habifity of £55.703m.

However, stalutory arangemenits far funding the deficit mean thot the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The
deficit on the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers Pension Fund will be made good by increosed contributions over
the remaining working life of emplayees, assessed by the scheme actuary.

Analysis of projected omount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year 1o 31
March 2018

10,240,000
1,365,000

Past service cost -

Gains and losses on setlements or curtailments

Projecled current cost
Nel Interest on the net defined benelit ligbility {asset}

The total contributions expected lo be made to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers Pension Fund by the
counciin the year to 31 March 2019 is £6.454m, of which £0.095m relotes to unfunded benefils.
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History of experience gains and tosses

The actuanial gainsfiosses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2017/18 can be analysed inlo the following
categories. measured as a percentage of assels or liabilities at 31 March 2018,

Expertience [gains and {losses) on Assets -2.38%
Experence gains and {losses] on Liabilities -0.32%

Ll Basis for estimating assels and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actyarial basis using the projected unit method, an eshmate of the pensions that will be
payable in the future years dependent on assumptions about mortaility rates, salary levels, etc. The Council's Fund kabilities
have been ossessed by Aon Hewitt Limited, on independent tirm of actuaries, estimates tor the Council Fund being based on
data pertaning t2 the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2018,

Equily investmenis 71.4% 74.5%
Bonds 12.4% 11.5%
Property 10.0% 10.5%
Cash 4.5% 2.6%
Other 1.7% 0.9%)
Morlality assumplions:

Longevity at 65 current pensioners: Years Years

Men 23.3 23.2
Wornen 259 258

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

Men 25.5 25.4)
Women 28.2 28.1
Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 2.10% 2.00%)
Salary Increase Rale 3.60% 3.50%)
Expected Relurn on Assels 510% 17.70%
Discount Rate 2.60% 2.60%
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.10% 200%

Take-up of oplion to convert annual pensicn into retirement lump sum:
Service to April 2009 75% 75%
Service post April 2009 75% 75%




Penston Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension ligures disclosed in these f nancial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit obligation as ot 31

March 2018 is set out below.

In each case, only the assumption noted below is allered; all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised in the

disclosure above,

Funded Pension Scheme Benelits

Discount Rale Assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.
Present value of the total obligation 249,930,000 260,645,000
% change in the present value of the total obligation -2.10% 2.10%
Projected service cost 2,934,000 10,554,000
Approximate % change in projecled service cost -3.00% 3.10%
Rate of Genetal Increase in Salaries
Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.
Present value of the total obligation 256,960,000 253,520,000
% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.70% -0.70%
Projected service cost 10,240,000 10,240,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.00% 0.00%
Rale of Increase to Pensions in Payment and Delerred Pension Assumplion
Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1%p.0. -0.1%p.a.
Prasent value of the total abligation 258,896,000 251,662,000
% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.40% -1.40%
Projected service cost 10,554,000 9.934,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.10% -3.00%
Post Retirement Modality Assumption
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption*® -t Year + 1 Yeor

" |Present value of the total obligation 262,785,000 247,718,000
% change in the present vaiue of the tolal obligation 3.00% -2.90%
Projected service cost 10,602,000 9.880.000
Approximate % change in projecied service cost 3.50% -3.50%

* Arahng of +1 year means that members are assumed 1o follow the morlaity patiern of the base table above for on

individual that is | year older than thot

LI Maojor categories of plan assets as percentage of {otal plan assets

71.40%

Equity investments 74.50%
Government Bonds 5.20% 5.40%
Corporate Bonds 7.20% 6.10%
Property 10.00% 10.50%
Cash AT 4.50% 2.60%
Other 1.70% 0.90%)
Total 100.00% 100.00%
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[l Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to date actuonol valuation was
cammied out as at 31/03/2012, This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Acluary and updaled ia reflect curent
condilions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the DoF Superannuation and Oiher Allowonces Resource Accounts as
at 31 March 2018,

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is o portion of pension that was accrued by individua's who were contracted out of
the state pension prior to & April 1997. At present there is an inequality of benefits between male and female members who
have GMP. Alihough the Government inlends that GMP should be equalised. af present it is not clear how this equalisation
will be implemented. In July 2014 the Government stated an intention to develop fully considered proposals and to publish
guidance when ths work is completed. but no target date was given. The impact of any liabilities relating to the Council is
therefore uncertain and no provision has been made in these financial stalements.

Opening balance ¥] 0
Add: new donated assets received [condition of

use not met) 0 4]
Less: amounts released to the District Fund -

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0

Analysls of Donated Assets Account

The Council hos no donated asssets.

ital Granis Received in Advance

Opening balance 0
Add: new capital grants received in advance [condifion of use not )

met) 0 0
Less: amounds released to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement 0 0

Analysis of Capltal Grants Recelpis in Advance Bolance

The Council utilised all Capital Granls received in yeor.

Contingencies

The Council has an ongoing legal case thot moy resuli in a claim being awarded lo council.



Armagh Clty Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

L9 Other cash tlow disclosures
.] Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Delicit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment 1o surplus or deficit on the provision of seivices

for noncash movements

Adjust for items included n the net surplus or deficil on the
provision of services that are investing and financing

£ £
Depreciation 11 8.551.812 7,188,683
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 7,220,671 1,567,683
Amortisation (included with depreciafion above] - -
Increose)/Decrease in Stock (17.111) 102,375
Increase}/Decrease in Debtors (2,016,788) 1,210,277
Increase/{decrease] in impairment provision for bad debis [14.303) 160,397
Increase/{Decrease) in Creditors 1,038,291 (241,099)
Increase/{Decrease] in Interest Creditors - -
Payments to NILGOSC 21 4,848,000 1.858,000
Canying amount of non-current assets sold 8a 383,717 170,992
AIC/WIP writfen off 1o Net Cost of Services 11 577,834 7,062
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions i9 914,326 (279,801)
Movement in value of investment properties-included
above in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions} - -
Amounts posted to CIES from Donaled Assets Account 2 -

Purchase of shorl-term {not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joinl ventures and subsidiares)

Proceeds from short-term [not considered to be cash
equivalenis) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associales, joint veniures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and

intangible assets 8 {335.965) (116,740)
Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant
income” 10 (692.007) {147,978}
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s} Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow staterent, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and short
term deposits and investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net of oulstanding bank overdrafls. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporting pernod as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the
related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash and Bank balances 1,838,302 7.640,775 6,872,607

Short Term Depaosits (considered to be Cash Equivalenls) 5,000,000 2,000,000 -

Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents} - - -
8ank Overdrait Z

®.640,775

Council holds monies on behalf of Anderson Trust, a third party Coal Fund which Council administers and makes
annual confributions to the charily on its behalf. These balances do not appear on Council's balance sheel. As at 31
March 2018 third party investrments totalled £30,489.13 {2014-17 £31,089.13) .

Council administers and operates a "Keep Cosy” Oil Stamp Savings Scheme as part of a Public Health Agency
funded project in which retailers supply saving stamps o individuals, lodge the funds and Council reimburses the Oil
Companies on redemplion of the stamps. As this is a holding account, these fransactions or balances are not
reflected in the financial statements.

[ Cash Flow Slolement; Operating Activities J1B
The cash flows from operating activities include: £ £
Interest received ] 139,449 138,717
Interest paid 9 | 2,448,602 2,618,2&.'2|I|I
.| Cash flows from Investing Activities 200718
£ £
Purchase of PPE, Investment Property & Intangible Assets 11 {5.331.848) {3.711,430)

Purchase of Short Term Investments {not considered o be
cash equivalents) -
Purchase of Long Term Investments -
Other Payments for Investing Activities - -

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets 8 335,965 114,740
Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be
cash equivalents) i X

Proceeds from Long Term Investments - -

Capital Grants and Contributions Received 10,12 692,007 167.978
Other Receipts from Investing Aclivities -

Net Cash flows from Investing Aclivilies (4,303,874 (3,426,712}

[ Caosh tlows from Financing Aclivilies

Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing 5 .
Other Receipts from Financing Aclivities . -

Cash paymenits for the reduction of the outstanding liability
relating o a finance lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI
contracts 2 - -
Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing &e, 17 {2.234,217) {2,152,235)
Other payments for ﬁ_nancing Activities - -

Met Cash lows from Financing Aclivilies {2,234.217)
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Usable Reserves

L} Capital Re

ipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originaled primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used to
finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is crediled with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement as
part of the gainfloss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Stalement 1o the Capital Receipts
Reserve. The reserve is wiilten down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside to
reduce an authorily's capital financing requirement {or used for other purposes permitted by statute}.

Capital Receipts Reserve Males 317032018 drjo3rzmz

£ £

At 1 April 538,434 421,694
Movement

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund

Disposal of Non Current Assefs/ Capital Sales 4.8 25 335,965 116,740
}g__c_:pilul Receipts used to finance capiial expenditure 4,12 b
Difference between finance and other costs and income

caiculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements

[Other Movements

At 31 March

b Capftal Grants Unapplied account

Where a copilal grant or contribution {or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the CIES, but the
expenditure to be financed from that grant or confribution has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet dale. the
grant or contribution shall be transferred to the Capital Granis Unapplied Account (within the usable reserves seclion
of the batance sheet). reflecting its stalus as a capital resource available to finance expenditure. This transfer is
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contibution is incurred, the grant or
contribution (or part thereof} shall be tansterred from the Capital Giants Unapplied Account to the Capital
Adjustment Account, reflecting the applicalion of capital resources to finance expenditure, This transier is also
reported in the Movement in Reserves Staterment or in the notes to the accounts.

Capital Grants Unopplied occount Mobes 31/03/2018

At 1 April - x
Movement

Unapplied Capital Grands received in year
Unapplied Capital Granis ransferred to CAA in year

< Capital Fund
This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act [NI} 1972, however this seclion of the act
was repealed under the Local Governmenl Finance Act {Nothermn Ireland) 2011, Councils should disclose delails
where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.




Capital Fund Hotes 317032017
At T April 4,074,097 4,074,097
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General

Fund 4 241,966

Transiers between Capital Fund & CAA to finance Capital

Expenditure 12 -

Al 31 March 43146063 4,074,097
£

South Lake Leisure Centre 3,814,063

Armagh Gaol 500,000

Total 4,316,063

.| Renewal and Repairs Fund

This fund was estabiished under seclion 56 of the Local Government Act (NI} 1972, however Ihis seclion of the act
was repealed under the Local Govermnment Finance Act (Nothem Ireland) 2011.

Renewaol ond Repairs Fund Notes 31/03/2018

At 1 April - 150,298
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General

Fund 515,517 {150.298)

Transfers belween Renewal 8 Repair Fund & CAA o finance
Capital Expenditure

12

£

Repairs and Renewal

515,517

Total

515,517

-} Cther Balances & Reserves

Olher Balances & Reserves 31/03/2018 31/03/200 7

£ L
At 1 April 5,523,796 3,630,599
Transfers between stalutory & other reserves & the General
Fund 4 (3.078,048) 1,893.197
Transiers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & 12 - -

£

Development Fund 1,000,000
Backlog Mainlenance Fund 1,000.000
Financial Assistance 240,000
Economic Regeneration 174112
Public Realm 31.616
Total 2,445,728

This reserve is used to fund projects from the Legacy Councils, Back log maintenance, Development fund and
Financial Assistance. During the year there was a redistiibution of funds between projects based on revised coslt

estimates.




This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepied
accounting practices, rather thon the amount to be funded from Distict Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

General Fund

1032017

£

At 1 April 17,096,102 16,750,212
Applied Capital Grants 4,12,26 {692,007) {167.978])
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year - -
Direcl Revenue Financing 4,12 {739.826) {1,022,593)
Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 4 15,772,483 B,756.366
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4 {4.885.747) (4.650.671)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statule

4,12 2,482,013 171,656
Surplus/[Deficit] on the Provision of Services CIES (14,742,859} {3.112,735)
Transfers belween Statutory and Other Reserves and the
General Fund 4 2320585 | {1,742.899)
Net movements on Pension Reserve 4,21 4,868,000 1,858,000,
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 4.11.25 47.752 54,252
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with stalutory requirements 4 284,978 202,492
Other Movements 4 571,081 -

Al 31 March
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YA Unuseable Reserves
[+] Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the fiming differences arising from the different arangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assets under statulory provisions.

The Account is debiled with the cost of acquisition, consiruction or enhancement s deprecialion, impairment losses
and amortisations are charged to the CIES, wilh reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to converl fair
value figures to an historic cost basis.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Properly, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008, the
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

31/0372017

Capital Adjusiment Account 31/03/2018

£ £
At T April 58,349,258 48,037,284
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 692,007 167.978
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year & o
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 739.826 1,022,593
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 1 (15,772,483) (8.756,364)
Statutory Provision for financing Copital Investment 4,12 4,885,747 4,650,671
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under statute 4,12 (2.482,013) {171,656
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 4,8 {383.717) {170,992
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 4,12 - -
Other Movements - CAA/Revalualion 4,770,644 [4,430,256)
Other Movements
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance capital expenditure 12 - -

At 31 March

b financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Financiol instruments Adjustment Account

At 1 April 3

D : - P -

The Council has no fransactions that would require use of this account.
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[+ Revaluation Reserve

The Revalualion Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Flant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are;

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
- disposed of and the gains are realised,

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since | April 2008, the date the reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidaled into the balonce on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up o balance based on the revaluation {upwards or downwards} of individual
assets. Al such revaluations {excluding impaimment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the
Provision of Services are mirrored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamenial principle of
this account that it never becomes negative. If on asset was held at cument value when derecognised. the baiance
held on the Revaluation Reserve is wiritten off to the Copital Adjustrment Account,

Revaluation Reserve

Al 1 Apiil 68,204,686 51,325,234
Revaluation & Impairment !! 18,021.524 10.449,196
Movements from associates & joint ventures - -

Other Movements (4.770,648) 6,430,256

At 31 March B1.455 564 68,204, 684

d Avallable for 5ale Financlal Instruments Reserve

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account.

Available lor Sale Financial Instruments Reserve Males 31/03/2018 31/03/2007

£ £

Al 1 April
Revaluation & Impairment - -

Fension Reserve

Al 1 April {49.930.000 (32,486,000)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,21 {4.868.000 {1.858.000)
Revaluation & Impairment 21 (205,000 {15,586,000)

At 31 March (55, 703.000) (4%, 930,000)
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Deterred Capital Recelpts Accouni

The Deferred Capital Receipts Account records capital advances receivable where an amount equal 1o the
advance is included as a deferred capital receipt. These amounis are wiilten down each year by the amount of
capital debt repaid to the Council in that year.

Capital Receipis Deferred Account Hotes

At 1 April - -
Other Movements b

g

h

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
balonce from accruing for compensated absences eamed but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
entitement carried torward at the end of the financial year. Statutory arangements are expected to require that the
impact on the General Fund is neutralised by fransters to or from this Accumulaled Absences Account

£ £
Al 1 April {698,174) (495,682)
Difference beltween finance and other cosis and income
colevlated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (284,978} {202,492)

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the arrangement, put in place by the Department under its amendment
to the 2012/13 accounts direction (see DOE circular 28/2013). to allow for mitigation of the costs not allowed for by
Councils who had adopted inflafionary odjusted discount rates for long-term provisions such as Landfill costs.

Provisions Discount Rale Reserve

Al 1 April o al
Difference between finance and other cosls and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

calculated in accordance with slatutory requirements {571,081)

Other Movements - -

Al 31 March (571,081)

Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers its only significant trading operation to be the provision of car parking facilities. The resulls for
this are Income of £812.040 and tolal cosls of £1.030,344. Tolal cosls include capital adjusiments to the accounts of
£540,982 and running costs of £489.362.

In deciding whether a trading operatfion is significant the Council takes both financial and non-financial criteria into
account.

Financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the risk of financial loss the Council may be exposed fo in providing the service to the user.

Non-financial criteria taken Inta account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:



- the importance of each individual frading operation te demonstrating the achievement of Council targets and
improving performance

- the exposure of the Council to service reputational loss risk by providing the service

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stakeholders and their needs.

In applying the aforementioned criteria, the Council considers thal it is engaging in the following significant frading
operations:

The losses below include capital adjustment costs ta the accounts of £540,982.

Off-street Parking Services I 812040 {218,304) | 917.077 | 184,674

Total ; | 812040 | (218.304) | 917,077 | 184,676
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Agency Services

The Council does not engage in any agency services

Joint Arrangements

The Council does not have any transaciions in this area.

Related Party Transactions

A Related Parly Transaclion is a transfer of resources or obligations belween related parlies, regardiess of whether o
price is charged. Related Party Transactions exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely
because of its economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A related party is
one thal has the ability to control the other porty or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financiol and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related party entity and another enlity are subject to
common conlrol but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade
Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the Council
and the entily is solely that of an Agency {see note 29) these are not deemed to be Relaled Party Transactions.

Council receives an onnual operaling grant from the Department for Communities (formerly known as the
Depariment of Environment). During 2017/18 it received £8.1M (2014/17 £7.9M) as reported in nole 10a.

Transactions with retated parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below, where a
descripfion of the nature, the amount of the Iransaction and the amount of the outstanding balance is as foilows.

The Council paid grants of £438,505 o a number of organisalions in which Councillors and Council officers had an
interest. These grants were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

Payments

Membership of External Bodies Counclllors Granis {Gross)

No £ £
Armagh, Banbridge and Craigavon Sports Forum 6 62,283
East Borcler Region Board 3 20,000
ICBAN 4 10,000
National Association of Councillors 8 3.280
NI Amenity Council 2 2.535
NI Local Government Partnership On Traveller Issues ] S0
NILGA 8 58.697 5323
PCSP 10 144,806
Portadown 2000 2 108.924
Somme Advisory Council 2 4,780 1.080

48 414,772 9.438

Council is represented by 10 Councillors an the Policing & Community sofety Fartrership, one of which acts as
Chairperson. During 2017/18 Council provided £145k of funding to the Partnership and annuatlly provides legal,
financial and personnel services for which it received £nil grant in 2017/18 {2016/17 £nil).
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Councillors were also associcied with the followlng organisations to which no paymenis were made during 17/18.

Membership of External Bodies Councillors
No
Armagh City Centre Management Committee 3
Armagh City Cenire Townscape Heritage Partnership 4
Community Development Member Reference Group 10
Craigavon Heartown Initiafive 1
East Border Region Members Forum 3
Elecled Member Development Charter 5
Local Action Group {(LAG) 12
Mall Steering Group 4
NILGA Community Planning and Well-Being Elected Memb- 2
NILGA Planning and Regeneration Elected Member Netwo 2

Northern lreland Housing Council |
Partnership Panel For Northern Ireland |
PCSP 10

Peace IV Partnership 9
Portadown People's Park Reference Group 4
Refugee Working Group &
Reserve Cadet Forces and Cadets Association for NI 2
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Payments were also made During 17/18 fo the following Local Authorities

Payment

£
Ards and North Down Berough Council 3.423
Mid and East Anfrirn Borough Council 25,606
Lisburn and Castlereagh City Council 170,976
Mid Ulster District Council 98,694
Newry Mourne & Down District Council 31,448
Belfast City Council 74,460
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council 3.806

408,413

k¥ 2 Prior Year Restatement

The Council have restated the CIES for 2016/17 figures to reflect the changes required by IAS] wilh regard 1o 'Telling
the Story” as per section () in the Narrative Report.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 20 September 2018 judgement was handed down in a legal case taken by a Council against the Department
for Communities relating to the allocation of Rote Support Grant. Armagh City Banbridge & Craigavon Borough
Councilis a recipient of Rale Support Grant and the decision in this case potentially has a significant impact on
the amount of Rate Support Grant that the Council may receive. It Is not possible for the Council to accurately
assess the impact of the Court decision until such times os the Department for Communities has indicated how it
intends to give effect to the Court judgement.
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